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1 MS. USTIMCHUK: Thank you, Your Honor. May it please 

2 the court. 

3 Before Your Honor is Sam Lee Copeland Bunch. He's 

4 represented by Attorney James Cheek of the public 

5 defender's office. 

6 He's before Your Honor on seven indictments: 

7 18-GS-42-4545 for the offense of possession with intent to 

8 distribute cocaine within a half mile; 18-GS-42-4546 for 

9 possession with intent to distribute marijuana; 

10 18-GS-42-4547 for possession with intent to distribute 

11 cocaine; 18-GS-42-4548 for resisting arrest A; 

12 18-GS-42-4549 for possession with intent to distribute 

13 cocaine base; 18-GS-42-4550 for the offense of possession 

14 with intent to distribute marijuana within half mile; 

15 18-GS-42-4551 for possession with intent to distribute 

16 cocaine base within half mile. 

17 Your Honor, the marijuana is his first offense. He's 

18 pleading as charged. 

19 The PWID cocaine and PWID cocaine base are his third 

20 offenses. He's pleading to second offenses. And he's 

21 waiving presentment to the grand jury on all of these 

22 indictments. 

23 We're recommending concurrent sentencing, Your Honor. 

24 THE COURT: You are Sam Lee Copeland Bunch? 

25 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 
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THE COURT: Mr. cheek is your lawyer? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: You've heard the solicitor read the 

4 indictments and the charges. 

5 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

6 THE COURT: Do you understand what they are? 

7 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

8 THE COURT: Did Mr. cheek go over each of these 

9 indictments with you and explain to you what the state 

10 claims you did? 

11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

12 THE COURT: Did he also tell you what kind of 

13 sentences you could receive if you were convicted or if you 

14 pled guilty to each of these charges? 

15 

16 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Did you tell him everything you know about 

17 the facts that relate to the allegations? 

18 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

19 THE COURT: Did y'all determine whether or not you had 

20 a defense to any one or more of the charges? 

21 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

22 THE COURT: Do you have a defense to any? 

23 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

24 THE COURT: Did Mr. cheek explain to you that you have 

25 a right for these matters to be presented to and considered 
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1 by the Spartanburg county Grand Jury? 

2 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

3 THE COURT: Did he tell you that these have not been 

4 to the grand jury? 

5 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

6 THE COURT: And you appear to have initialed a form 

7 indicating you wanted to waive your right to have these 

8 presented to the grand jury. Is that true? 

9 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

10 THE COURT: Did you understand what you were waiving 

11 and giving up when you initialed the form? 

12 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

13 THE COURT: And that's what you wish to do, is waive 

14 your right? 

15 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

16 THE COURT: Did he also explain to you that you had 

17 the right to remain silent? 

18 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

19 THE COURT: Do you understand what that means? 

20 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

21 THE COURT: Do you wish to give that right up in order 

22 to enter a plea of guilty? 

23 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

24 THE COURT: okay. well, if you don't want to give up 

25 your right to remain silent then 
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THE DEFENDANT: oh, yes, sir, yes, sir. 

THE COURT: you can remain silent, but I won't be 

3 able to ask you anything because I can't get any answers. 

4 THE DEFENDANT: okay. Yes, sir. 

5 THE COURT: Do you want to answer my questions? 

6 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

7 THE COURT: All right. so you're giving up your right 

8 to remain silent? 

9 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

10 THE COURT: Did Mr. cheek also explain to you that you 

11 have a right to confront and to examine any witness in 

12 court that would provide evidence against you as it relates 

13 to these charges? 

14 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

15 THE COURT: Do you understand when you plead guilty 

16 you give up your right to confront those witnesses? 

17 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

18 THE COURT: Is that what you wish to do? 

19 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

20 THE COURT: Did Mr. cheek explain to you that you have 

21 a right to have a jury trial and for 12 jurors to consider 

22 the evidence in your cases and to decide whether or not 

23 you're guilty of the crimes the state claims you committed? 

24 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

25 THE COURT: Do you understand when you plead guilty 
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1 you give up your right to have a jury make that decision? 

2 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

3 THE COURT: Is that what you wish to do? 

4 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

5 THE COURT: Has anybody promised you anything that 

6 caused you to make your decision to plead guilty? 

7 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

8 THE COURT: Has anybody threatened you or forced you 

9 or placed any pressure upon you? 

10 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

11 THE COURT: Are you pleading guilty freely and 

12 voluntarily? 

13 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

14 THE COURT: And is it your desire to plead guilty to 

15 each of these charges? 

16 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

17 THE COURT: And are you doing so because you did 

18 commit each of the crimes just as they are described in 

19 each of the separate indictments? 

20 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

21 THE COURT: Do you understand that possession with 

22 intent to distribute cocaine within a half mile of a school 

23 carries up to ten years in jail and a fine of $10,0007 

24 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

25 THE COURT: Do you understand that it's also 
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1 designated and classified as a serious offense under the 

2 law? 

3 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

4 THE COURT: Do you understand the significance of that 

5 designation? 

6 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

7 THE COURT: Do you also understand that possession 

8 with intent to distribute marijuana as a first offense 

9 carries up to five years in jail and a fine of $5,000? 

10 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

11 THE COURT: Do you understand possession with intent 

12 to distribute crack cocaine within one-half mile of a 

13 school or park also carries, again, up to ten years in jail 

14 and a fine of $10,000 and it's classified as a serious 

15 offense? 

16 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

17 THE COURT: Do you also understand that possession 

18 with intent to distribute cocaine second offense carries up 

19 to 30 years in jail and a fine of $50,000 and provides for 

20 a minimum sentence of not less than five years in jail? 

21 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

22 THE COURT: Do you also understand that you -- the 

23 crime of possession with intent to distribute marijuana 

24 within a half mile of a school also carries up to ten years 

25 in jail? 
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1 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

2 THE COURT: carries more than the possession with 

3 intent to distribute marijuana carries. 

4 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

5 THE COURT: Do you understand? 

6 And you have an additional possession with intent to 

7 distribute crack cocaine second offense. It carries 

8 between five and thirty and $50,000. 

9 And the remaining indictment is resisting arrest, 

10 which carries up to one year in jail. 

11 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

12 THE COURT: understanding that, do you still want to 

13 go forward with your guilty pleas? 

14 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

15 THE COURT: You're 39 years old? 

16 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

17 THE COURT: How far did you go 1n school? 

18 THE DEFENDANT: Eleventh grade. 

19 THE COURT: And why did you quit? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE DEFENDANT: working. 

THE COURT: And what kind of work were you doing? 

THE DEFENDANT: working in a warehouse. 

THE COURT: what warehouse? 

THE DEFENDANT: Averto. 

THE COURT: And what were you doing in the warehouse? 
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THE DEFENDANT: Industrial work. 

THE COURT: Have you ever been married? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Are you married now? 

THE DEFENDANT: separated. 

THE COURT: Ever had a child? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: How many? 

THE DEFENDANT: One. 

THE COURT: what age? 

THE DEFENDANT: Twelve. 

THE COURT: Ever been treated for any type of 

13 substance abuse or addiction? 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Do you suffer from that condition? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: what kind of treatment have you had? 

THE DEFENDANT: SADAC. 

THE COURT: When? 

THE DEFENDANT: Back 1n, I want to say, 2013. 

THE COURT: Did you successfully complete that 

22 program? 

23 

24 

THE DEFENDANT: Yeah, somewhat, somewhat, yeah. 

THE COURT: Well, did you get a certificate of 

25 completion? 
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1 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

2 THE COURT: All right. So you didn't successfully 

3 complete it. Do you still suffer from an addiction today? 

4 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

5 THE COURT: TO what? 

6 THE DEFENDANT: cocaine. 

7 THE COURT: And is there anything -- how long have you 

8 been in jail? 

9 THE DEFENDANT: Been in jail for 50 something days. 

10 THE COURT: You haven't had anything while you've been 

11 in jail, have you? 

12 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

13 THE COURT: Is there anything about your condition 

14 today, with your addiction, that prevents you from 

15 understanding fully what you're doing right now? 

16 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

17 THE COURT: Have you ever been treated for any type of 

18 mental illness or emotional disturbance? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: what have you been treated for? 

THE DEFENDANT: Paranoid schizophrenia. 

THE COURT: when were you treated? 

THE DEFENDANT: Back in 1994. 

THE COURT: And where were you treated? 

THE DEFENDANT: Patrick B. Harris. 
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3 

4 

5 

6 
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THE COURT: Did you complete a program there? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. They just released me. 

THE COURT: Released you. 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Did you have any follow-up treatment? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: And do you suffer from that condition 

8 today? 

9 THE DEFENDANT: A little something, not that much. 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

THE COURT: Is it under control? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: Are you medicated? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

THE COURT: Have you ever taken medication for it? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, when I was younger. 

THE COURT: But you haven't -- when is the last time 

17 you took medication? 

18 THE DEFENDANT: Probably '96 or something like that. 

19 THE COURT: All right. And you left Patrick B. Harris 

20 when? 

21 THE DEFENDANT: In '94. 

22 THE COURT: And did -- did your doctors take you off 

23 the medication, or did you just quit taking it? 

24 THE DEFENDANT: They took me off the medication. 

25 THE COURT: They took you off it. They didn't think 
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1 you needed it any longer? 

2 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

3 THE COURT: okay. Is there anything about that 

4 condition today that interferes with your ability to fully 

5 understand what you're doing? 

6 THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. 

7 THE COURT: All right. Listen to what the solicitor 

8 tells me about the facts that relate to these cases. 

9 MS. USTIMCHUK: Thank you, Your Honor. 

10 This occurred on June the 30th of 2018 at 108 Pine 

11 Needle Drive in the Spartanburg city and county. 

12 officer Lawrence smith of the Spartanburg county 

13 sheriff's office was on foot patrol and he saw the 

14 defendant, Sam Lee Copeland Bunch, and he knew him to have 

15 a warrant for his arrest. 

16 Deputy Smith approached the defendant and stated that 

17 he was under arrest and instructed him to place his hands 

18 behind his back. The defendant failed to comply and 

19 attempted to flee from the scene. 

20 After a brief scuffle Deputy smith was able to subdue 

21 the defendant and place him in handcuffs. Deputy Smith 

22 then performed a search of the defendant's person incident 

23 to arrest and found a green leafy substance he believed to 

24 be marijuana with a field weight of seven grams, two 

25 digital scales, a purple crown Royal bag containing five 
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1 clear baggies with an off-white substance and multiple 

2 pills bills consisting of various denominations. 

3 The drugs found on Mr. Bunch's person were submitted 

4 to the Spartanburg county forensic analysis lab. The 

5 marijuana weighed a total of 5.95 grams. Two of the 

6 baggies contained cocaine weighing .12 grams. one baggie 

7 contained cocaine base and weighed .30 grams, Your Honor. 

8 108 Pine Needle Drive is .6 miles away from the Early 

9 Learning center located 301 crescent Avenue in Spartanburg. 

10 Your Honor, he does have a prior record. 

11 THE COURT: All right. Tell me about it. 

12 MS. USTIMCHUK: 1997, vandalism; 2000, shoplifting; 

13 2004, burglary third degree first offense and two counts of 

14 simple assault and battery; 2010, PWID cocaine base first 

15 offense; 2012, possession of less than one gram of meth or 

16 cocaine base, leaving the scene of an accident, open 

17 container and D.U.S.; 2013, three counts of PWID near a 

18 school, unlawful carrying; 2016, possession of a schedule I 

19 to II substance third offense, resisting arrest and failure 

20 to stop and violation of probation. 

21 THE COURT: All right. You heard what the solicitor 

22 told me about the facts that relate to your cases. 

23 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

24 THE COURT: Do you agree or disagree? 

25 THE DEFENDANT: I agree. 
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1 THE COURT: You heard what she told me about your 

2 criminal history. 

3 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

4 THE COURT: Do you agree or disagree? 

5 THE DEFENDANT: I agree. 

6 THE COURT: Do you still want to plead guilty? 

7 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. 

8 THE COURT: All right. I'll accept your pleas and 

9 hear from you and Mr. cheek. 

10 MR. CHEEK: May it please the court, Your Honor. 

11 we'd ask the court to consider concurrent sentencing 

12 before the court today, these charges. we'd ask the court 

13 to consider that Mr. Bunch really has been one of those 

14 people who had several unfortunate incidents to occur to 

15 him. 

16 I've known him since he was a teenager. He and my 

17 adopted son are biological cousins. so I've known him over 

18 the years. 

19 several tragedies in his life with his family, losing 

20 family members under tragic situations and then losing his 

21 eyesight out of one eye, actually having that eye 

22 obliterated and having to replace it with a device. 

23 He's gone through a lot, and he's turned to drugs time 

24 and time again as opposed to trying to seek, I think, the 

25 type of psychological help he needs. He has turned to the 

15 
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1 drugs. when they brought him in this time, Your Honor, on 

2 this arrest into the detention facility they had to detox 

3 him. 

4 we almost lost him again because of the state he was 

5 under. He'd already taken some of the drugs that he had in 

6 his possession, Your Honor, and was drinking beer, had that 

7 with him also when he was arrested. 

8 He has really tried to think everything through to any 

9 kind of defense he could offer in the matter at trial, Your 

10 Honor. of course we would have looked at the actual 

11 amounts. The total amount of these drugs, Your Honor, is 

12 less than a gram. It's .9 tenths of a gram of drugs. 

13 And when he bought them he thought he was buying all 

14 of the same drug. Fortunately, he didn't imbibe the drugs 

15 because one of them was fentanyl. It appeared to be a drug 

16 that he wanted to imbibe himself, but it was not. 

17 we just ask the court to consider all of that as the 

18 court fashions a sentence in this case. He has built a 

19 criminal history for himself each time by having drugs on 

20 his person or/and he would allege each time it was for his 

21 own personal use. 

22 Your Honor, in addition he did have the two sets of 

23 scales, and the state would have asserted that was some 

24 indication that he was going to be weighing the drugs and 

25 selling the drugs, which typically it's my understanding 
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1 that when you go out and buy the drugs that they weigh them 

2 before you even purchase them, the person they're getting 

3 the drugs from. And he had the scales on him for that 

4 reason. But everything appeared that he was going to be 

5 going to his girlfriend's house and that there would be 

6 some imbibing of these drugs himself and herself. 

7 she's here today, Your Honor, to speak on his behalf, 

8 and she would respectfully ask the court to let her come 

9 forward and speak on his behalf as far as his behaviors 

10 otherwise in the community. But he does have the addiction 

11 and has to deal with it. 

12 We'd ask the court to consider the minimum sentence. 

13 If the court determines that it's necessary that he be 

14 under any kind of incarceration, we ask the court to 

15 consider the possibility of a home detention sentence 

16 because he would otherwise be able to conform his behavior 

17 in the community. 

18 we'd ask that whatever the court might do, we'd ask 

19 the court to consider a minimum of a 5-year sentence, Your 

20 Honor, and see if he can't come back out and tend to his 

21 behaviors whether he's being supervised in the community or 

22 in the department of corrections. 

23 THE COURT: All right. Mr. Bunch, do you want to add 

24 anything? 

25 THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. I apologize for my actions, 
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1 and I would just want to just -- you just give me another 

2 chance or whatever and try to make things better so I can 

3 just be out there with my son and my woman and her kids or 

4 whatever and just try to make things better and just put me 

5 in some kind of drug program where I can get help and kind 

6 of house arrest where I can just be out there and work and 

7 do the right thing, because I do have a drug issue, and I 

8 just want to be out and be with my family. 

9 THE COURT: okay. who else wants to be heard? 

10 Yes, ma'am. Your name. 

11 CORISSA BRADBURN: Corissa Bradburn. 

12 THE COURT: All right. What would you like to tell 

13 me? 

14 CORISSA BRADBURN: I would like to tell you that me 

15 and Sam Bunch, we've been together for a pretty long time. 

16 Like Mr. cheek was saying, he has had very, very, very 

17 tragic events happen in his life, and, you know, he just 

18 turned to the wrong things. 

19 He is a very good person. He maintains my 

20 household -- me and my children. Just I think that he 

21 needs some type of counseling to where he can, you know, 

22 maintain to where he can be sober. And just, please, 

23 because he -- he is a very good person. He is. And he has 

24 very good qualities and becoming and overcoming what he has 

25 going on right now, I feel like. 
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1 THE COURT: okay. 

2 CORISSA BRADBURN: So I would just, please, just take 

3 that into consideration. 

4 

5 

6 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you, ma'am. 

Anything else? 

MR. CHEEK: Nothing further from the defense, Your 

7 Honor. 

8 THE COURT: All right. Indictment 2018-04547 --

9 that's second offense possession with intent to distribute 

10 cocaine -- sentence is you be confined to the Department of 

11 corrections for a period of 20 years, suspended upon the 

12 service of ten. 

13 Probation for three. Recommend A.T.U. while 

14 incarcerated. 

15 conditions of probation, substance abuse counseling, 

16 random drug and alcohol testing, $500 for your appointed 

17 lawyer. 

18 First 90 days of supervision will be pursuant to the 

19 Spartanburg county Home Detention Program. 

20 Indictment 2018-04549, ten years concurrent. 

21 Indictment 2018-04551, ten years concurrent. 

22 Indictment 2018-04550, five years concurrent. 

23 Indictment 2018-04548, one year concurrent. 

24 Indictment 2018-04546, five years concurrent. 

25 Indictment 2018-04545, five years concurrent. 
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credit for jail time. 

MR. CHEEK: Thank you, Your Honor. 

MS. USTIMCHUK: Thank you, Your Honor. 

END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD 
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FORMS 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

coUNTY OF -~fl-tkaflbui-~ ~ 
) 

~;l..rf\ Lee Cooe\and ~unc.½#"~S25CJO) 
Full name and prisdn number (if any) of Applicant. ) 

) 
v. ) 

) 
State of South Carolina ) 

) 

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 

APPLICATION FOR 

POST-CONVICTION RELIEF 

INSTRUCTIONS .. READ CAREFULLY 
~ 

In order for this application to receive consideration by the Court, it shall be in writing (legi~ - ·· 
handwritten or typewritten), signed by the applicant and verified (notarized), and it shall set fortlni ~o . . 
concise form the answers to each applicable question. If necessary, applicant may furnish his answe~ a - .·: 
particular question on the reverse side of the page or on an additional page. Applicant shall make clE.Wto :.--:·: . 
which question any such continued ansv.er refers. ~ ':~~ ~~~ : · 

Since every application must be sworn under oath, any false statement of a material fact therer; tf ~i 

may serve as the basis of prosecution and conviction for perjury. Applicants should, therefore, exerci& ·· J 
care to assure that all answers are trueand correct. 

If the application is takenin forma pauperis it shall include an affidavit (attached at the back of 
the form) setting forth informatic>n which establishes that applicant will be unable to pay the fees and costs 
of the proceedings. When tm appHcation is completed,the original shall be mailed to the Clerk of Court 
for the County in which the applicant was convicted. 

1. PlaceofdetentionALLE.N0Al£ (0R~tC.TI0N \ N~TlTUT{Ol\J 
2. . . Name and location of Court which imposed sentence 5fat--hn~C"o.niry Cru-+& Ge~dl £essic»') 

··"-. · ... ...;.:._~) .,f co . .Je"···1d--•''"'' ,:c .. _.,, ~ \ 
J .1~u:u.11-,... v •u. J.~• c:ua,:i. J \h '1n) J ~ · • ·· · ··· · •· - -· .. --· . _ ... -~- _ . 

4. The indictment number or numbers (if known) upon which and the offenses for which 

sentence was imposed: 

<a) 10\x7G~42..04S49 
(b) ~5-42-4545 
{c) Jli5-42454Co 

5. The date upon which sentence was imposed and the terms of the sentence: 

(a) ~u~+ 29J20{~ 
(b) 

1 
Revised 3/2003 
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(c) 

6. Check whether a finding of guilcy was made; 

(a) after a plea of guilty jL_ 
(b) after a plea of not guilty __ 

( c) after a plea of nolo contendere __ 

7. Did you appeal from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of sentence? 

~ 
8. If you answered "yes" to (7), list: 

(a) the name of each Court to which you appealed: 

i. _Ji&._ 
ii. lLA. 
iii. Nil 
(b) 
i. 

ii. 

iii. 

(c) 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

~ ~t in each such Court to which you appealed: 

NA 
fil 
the date of each such result: 

Ji/1 
Jih_ 
_NA 

(d) if known, citations of any written-opinion or orders entered pursuant to such 

results: 

i. 

iii. 

llA 
.JJA. 
Ji.A 

9. If you answered "no" to (7), state your reasons for not so appealing: 

(a) ~n~e\ ·f-a.,\ed to \nfotrY) rne ot rn,r·r-,a.\rt +a d\r--ec+ 
_8/f Pea\ & ~ ·t-f..q_ Vl t-- e d r . t' ~\ -i4 

(b) ~ur- cl\<l ne -\\ \e, a (\c,t,ce. o, appec1 . 
(c) 

10. State concisely the grounds on which you base your allegation that you are being held in 

custody unlawfully: 

Revised 3/2003 
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.... __ 

(a) Dffiie,c\ +'ne. t--i~V"I-\- -+o 61 r--ec\- .a.p pu \ 
(b) kn\ e.c\ ot Due. P,-oc_e. %~ 
(c) 

11. State concisely and in the same order the facts which support each of the grounds set out 

12. 

--. 

in c10): ,, . _ " d 
0 (out-+ ;9nor--u~ -\¾\e vai-tance irrt\,\eamou,r\- °' MJr{-\ d 
;) (oun ~d h1\~c\ to do ptope.t- i'l'l\/e.~i~a-\-ion, c.oufl'5e) a, e -

(c} Denied Clve pt-oc.e,~,s w\ne,n I we.re ~rr\-e.nc.ed \oa ~e.d on -w\ri~-
Prior to this application have you filed with respect to this conviction: 

(a) any petition in a State Court under South Carolina Law?~ 

(b) any petition in State or Federal Courts for habeas corpus or post .. convictions 

relief? _Ng_ 
( c) any petition in the United States Supreme Court for certiorari other than petitions, 

if any, already specified in (8)? _N_o_ 
( d) any other petitions, mo~ions ... or applications in this or any other Court? __Na_ 

13. If you answered ''yes" to any part of ( 12), list with respect to each petition, motion or 

application: 

(a) the specific nature thereof: 

i. 1LA. 
ii. .AI.A 
iii. -W.-A. 
iv. ./i.A:· 
(b) 

i. 

ii. 

the nattie and location of the Court in which each was filed: 

iii. 

iv. 

(c) 

i. 

ii . 

iii. 

_l1_A_ 

.NA 

I 
the disposition thereof: 

.&A 
JiA 
.!YA· 

3 

~ -...&> • ,. 

-:::,, 
~o ::·• 
::;·J .. 

'" f, 
N ·-
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iv. 

(d) 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

iv. 

(e) 

i. 

_fil 
the date of each such disposition: 

JiA 

~ 
lLA_ 
if lmown, citations of any written opiniof!S or orders entered pursuant to each such 

disposition: 

- . ---·. - .. . -----..... ii. 

iii. 

iv. 

H_A_ 
fil_ 

--

la 
14. Has any ground set forth in (10) been previously presented to this or any other Court, 

State or Federal, in any petition, motion or application which you have filed? 

.J1fJ 
15. If you answered "yes" to (14) identify: 

(a) . which gr~\lllds have been presented: 

i. JiA_ 
ii. lJ!_ 
iii. ,/_bl.A 
(b) 9te proceedings in which each ground was raised: 

i. 1lli_ 
ii. . Ji.A_ 
iii. .NA. 

16. If any ground set forth in (10) has not previously been presented to any Co~ State or 

Federal, set forth the ground and ~te concisely the reasons why such ground has not 

previously been presented: \. +-. 
0 

(a) Tui•Sm~ ~it-~-\ PCPi a.pp ,ca I n. 
(b) &a 
(c) J1A 

17. Were you represented by an attorney at any time during the course of: 

(_' ·., (.., 

--- t. ::, ·~ ~= - ,_:. .. . ..... . 
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(a) your arraignment and plea? fu 
(b) your trial, if any? .J:l& 
( c) your sentencing? ~ 
( d) your appeal, if any, from the judgment of conviction or the imposition of 

sentence? _MA 
( e) i,reparation, presentation or consideration of any petitions, motions or applications 

with respect to this conviction, which you filed? J:i.Q.. 
18. If you answered "yes" to one or more parts of (17), list: 

19. 

20. 

(a) the name and address of each attorney who represented you: 

i. ~~\,e.\ ~e.,~\e.~ 3t..C..Ndiut-c.h ~+,Suitdooo ~ptb~,$~2q~03 
ii. Jame~ C~E.e.l1~ 3lo~ N C¼ut-ch ~-t-~K;,-\-e 30oo~p~~,~'- 2910'3 

iii. 

(b) the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you: 

i. lJJ2_ pr---ceedlv1~s 
u. __Ati-a t <.3n Mtn+,. pl ed. 1 2nd ~en+en c:l 1-1q 
iii. 

State clearly the relief you seek-in filing this application: 

Lessetv sen+en c-e 
Are you now under sentence from any other court that you have not challenged? 

,....:, 
~. - .. 
u:> 

~ ... 
~ .. 
N l,~ 

N \..: ,. . . 
::=- t..')c. 
:x (.-, ,;: ; 

Cj:,:. 
-:: L: :-·:.J. 
,&:- ?.·-.-"• 
w ,•• 
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, --· 
\ 

APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT 
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT 

IN SUPPORT THEREOF 
~am 0lJnch · 

I, , hereby apply for leave to proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or costs or 
security therefor. In support of my application I declare under penalty of perjury that the 
following facts are true: 

(1) I am the applicant in this action and I believe I am entitled to redress. 

(2) Because of my poverty I am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give 
security thereof. 

--·--ed. to and subscribed before me this 
; L 2CI~. 

My Commission Expires: _J~ _____ / __ f ;i.. ___ J_~_;). __ _ 

Revised 3/.2003 
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l . _,. 

\ 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

County of Spa r---\-c:lV\ tt.Jt-f:::l ~ VERIFICATION 

';)am ~llvtc~ 
I, , being duly sworn upon my oath, depose and say that I have subscribed to the foregcing 
application; that I know the contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for 
vacating, setting aside or correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and 
that the matters and allegations therein set forth are true. 

fl-%1 ~tlv 

SWORN t!' ar-ci subscribed before me t.½is \ Lp 
day of (\ ac ·, L , 2).JS._. 

' .l 
l) ~NdU B Ju.J,k (L.S.) 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: J ~ } ) ~ } ~ ~ 

6 

~ 
c;:, 

'° .:> .. 
~ 
A) . 

N ·.•.· 
N c:• 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
) FOR THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch, ) Case No.: 2019-CP-42-01478 
S.C.D.C. No. 352590, ) 

) ~ 
c::, -Applicant, ) "° <-

) RETURN C: z 
V. ) (Counsel Appointed) 

) 
_., 

State of South Carolina, ) :ta 
::c 

) "° Respondent. ) •··• -
) UI 

In response to the application for post-conviction relief filed by Same Lee Copeland 

Bunch (Applicant) on April 22, 2019, Respondent would show this Court: 

I. PROCEDURAL HISTORY 

(.;) 

""'Q ::;:n 
,......,., ;--
::-1 r1 _...>;u 
z~ -n 
tD - .......:, 
car-
'3J -r,f17 
CJOC 
(;0 
oc: 
c:::o 
z-. 
--j 

-< 

Applicant is confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to orders 

of commitment of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. Applicant was charged for possession 

with intent to distribute cocaine within one-half mile of a school (2018-GS-42-04545), 

possession with intent to distribute marijuana (2018-GS-42-04546), possession with intent to 

distribute cocaine, second offense (2018-GS-42-04547); resisting arrest (2018-GS-42-04548); 

possession with intent to distribute cocaine base, second offense (2018-GS-42-04549), 

possession with intent to distribute marijuana within one-half mile of a school (2018-GS-42-

04550), possession with intent to distribute cocaine base within one-half mile of a school (2018-

GS-42-04551 ). James A. Cheek, Esq. represented Applicant, and Tatyana Stepanova 

Ustimchuk, Esq., of the Seventh Circuit Solicitor's Office, prosecuted the case. On August 29, 

2018, Applicant waived presentment and pied guilty to the above charges. The Honorable J. 

Derham Cole sentenced Applicant to imprisonment for concurrent terms of 5 years for PWID 
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cocaine within a half-mile, 5 years for PWID marijuana, 20 years for PWID cocaine, 1 year for 

resisting arrest, IO years for PWID cocaine base, 5 years for PWID marijuana within a half-mile, 

and 10 years for PWID cocaine base within a half-mile. Applicant did not appeal his plea or 

conviction. 

II. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

The underlying facts of the crimes for which Applicant is incarcerated were articulated 

by the State during the plea proceeding as follows: 

This occurred on June the 30th of 2018 at 108 Pine Needle Drive in the 
Spartanburg city and county. 

Officer Lawrence Smith of the Spartanburg County Sheriffs Office was on foot 

patrol and he saw the defendant, Same Lee Copeland Bunch, and he knew him to 
have a warrant for his arrest. -"° 
Deputy Smith approached the defendant and stated that he was under arrest and ~ 
instructed him to place his hands behind his back. The defendant failed to compl)'-: 

-..J 
and attempted to flee from the scene. 

After a brief scuffle Deputy Smith was able to subdue the defendant and place Vl 
him in handcuffs. Deputy Smith then performed a search of the defendant's c.n 
person incident to arrest and found a leafy substance he believed to be marijuana 
with a field weight of seven grams, two digital scales, a purple Crown Royal bag 

containing five clear baggies with an off-white substance and multiple pilles -
bills consisting of various denominations. 

The drugs found on Mr. Bunch's person were submitted to the Spartanburg 
County forensic analysis lab. The marijuana weighed a total of 5.95 grams. Two 
of the baggies contained cocaine weighting .12 grams. One baggie contained 

cocaine base and weighed .30 grams, Your Honor. 

108 Pine Needle Drive is .6 miles away from the Early Leaming Center located 
[at] 301 Crescent Avenue in Spartanburg. 

(Tr. 13-14). Upon inquiry by the Court, Applicant confirmed the above articulated facts. (Tr. 

14-15) 
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III. CURRENT APPLICATION 

In his post-conviction relief application, Applicant alleges he is being held unlawfully for 

the following reasons: 

1. "Denied the right to direct appeal" 
2. "Denied of Due Process" 

a. "Court ignored the variance in the amount of drugs stated in the indictment in the 
actual amount stated in the lab report" 

b. "Counsel failed to do proper investigation, counsel failed to request a lesser 
charge based on the evidence presented" 

c. "Denied Due Process when I were sentenced based on what were in the 
indictment instead of what the amount actually proven" 

Applicant requests relief as follows: 

• "Lesser sentence" 

Attached to and incorporated herein are the records of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court 

regarding the subject convictions, Applicant's records from the South Carolina Department of 

Corrections, the plea transcript, and the current application for relief. Respondent reserves ~ (J) 

c::::» v 

right to amend this Return upon receipt of relevant information. ~ ; f2 
- .,,. rr1 z .,.>Ai 

IV. RESPONSE TO ALLEGATION OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUN~L ~~;: 

Ineffective Assistance of Plea Counsel, Generally 
::0.,., f17 

:a:- C>no 
:a: {"")0 

'!? 
oc 
c:::::-) 

Applicant's allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel are without merit. In a P-6R _ _. 
c.n -< 

action, Applicant bears the burden of proving the allegations in his application. Butler v. State, 

286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the application alleges ineffective assistance of 

counsel as a ground for relief, Applicant must prove that "counsel's conduct so undermined the 

proper functioning of the adversarial process that [it] cannot be relied upon as having produced a 

just result." Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686 (1984); Butler, 286 S.C. at 442, 334 

S.E.2d at 814. 
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In evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel, the reviewing court applies 

the two-pronged test outlined in Strickland. First, Applicant must prove that counsel's 

performance was deficient. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686; Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 117, 386 

S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989). Under this prong, the court measures an attorney's performance by its 

"reasonableness under prevailing professional norms." Cherry. 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 

625 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690). The proper measure of performance is whether the 

attorney provided representation within the range of competence required in criminal cases. 

Butler, 286 S.C. at 442, 334 S.E.2d at 814. "Counsel is strongly presumed to have rendered 

adequate assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable professional 

judgment." Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690). Applicant must overcome this presumption 

to receive relief. Cherry. 300 S.C. at 118, 386 S.E.2d at 625. Second, counsel's deficient 

performance must have prejudiced Applicant such that "there is a reasonable probability that, but 

for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the proceeding would have been different~ ~ 
- > ~ ;;o~ 

Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With respect to guilty plea counsel, Applia:it >r,J 
z z:::o 
- a:,::.x;,i 

must show that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's alleged errors, he Wt:mld§~~ 
:z-. C>ncj 

not have pleaded guilty and would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 ~- ~§ 
59 (1985). 

Failure to Investigate 

Z--i °' .-4 -< 

In order to prevail upon a claim that counsel did not adequately prepare or investigate a 

case, an applicant must present evidence of what counsel could have discovered or what other 

defenses applicant could have requested counsel develop and present had counsel been more 

prepared. Harris v. State, 377 S.C. 66, 75-76, 659 S.E.2d 140, 145-46 (2008) (citing Jackson v. 

State, 329 S.C. 345, 353-54, 495 S.E.2d 768, 772 (1998)). Furthermore, an applicant must also 
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present evidence to show how the discoverable matters or defenses would have resulted in a 

different outcome. Id. (citing Davis v. State, 326 S.C. 283, 288, 486 S.E.2d 747, 749 (1997); 

Skeen v. State, 325 S.C 210, 214, 481 S.E.2d 129, 132 (1997)). Mere speculation as to how the 

alleged lack of preparation prejudiced an applicant is not sufficient to support a grant of relief. 

Id., 377 S.C. at 75, 659 S.E.2d at 145 (citing Glover v. State, 318 S.C. 496, 498, 458 S.E.2d 538, 

540 (1995)). 

Conclusion and Action Requested 

Applicant can satisfy neither requirement of the Hill test. However, the allegation of 

ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises questions of fact that the record does not 

conclusively refute. Accordingly, Respondent respectfully requests an evidentiary hearing to 

fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 305 S.E.2d 247 (1983). 

V. RESPONSE TO RELIEF REQUESTED ...., U; 
c:::, 'TJ 

J.;, (") 
"° :::Or­in his prayer for relief, Applicant requests the Court reduce his sentence. This re lie~ :;-1 f"t'1 

_...> :::0 
:z: z'.A'il 

c:::, -unavailable in a post-conviction relief action. If this Court finds a defect in the original -.t c:or­
::o,,p1 

,._ C".>nci 
proceedings, the appropriate relief would be a new trial on the original indictments. GilstrarY. g ~ 

\D ,-::o .. z-
State, 252 S.C. 625, 168 S.E.2d 88 (1969); see also Smith v. State, 413 S.C. 194, 195, 775 ~ ~-;· 

S.E.2d 696, 696 (2015) ("We now clarify the proper remedy is a new trial.") Grant v. 

MacDougall, 244 S.C. 387, 391, 137 S.E.2d 270, 272 (1964) (relief of absolute release not 

available). Where an applicant seeks only relief to which he or she is not entitled, "it is not 

incumbent upon [the] court to pass upon what relief, if any, he [ or she] might, perchance, be 

entitled to." Young v. State, 250 S.C. 476,479, 158 S.E.2d 764, 765 (1968). For these reasons, 

if the application is not otherwise amended before the evidentiary hearing to reflect a desire for 

appropriate relief, Respondent would respectfully request this Court engage in a thorough 
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colloquy with Applicant to apprise him of the relief available in a PCR. If at the evidentiary 

hearing Applicant indicates no desire in appropriate relief but a desire to proceed, Respondent 

will at that time move to dismiss the application. 

VI. ASSERTION OF RIGHTS TO NOTICE OF AMENDMENTS, EXPERTS 

Applicant must specify any claims he intends to raise at the PCR evidentiary hearing. 

Any claims not specifically laid out in this PCR application or in amendments will be opposed by 

the State at an evidentiary hearing pursuant to § § 17-27-10 to -160 of the South Carolina Code 

of Laws and Rule 71.1 of the South Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure. See also Rules 15(a)-(b), 

SCRCP; Mangal v. State, 421 S.C. 85, 805 S.E.2d 568 (2017). All claims should be made well 

in advance of the evidentiary hearing. Because Applicant has been appointed an attorney, the 

attorney, and not Applicant, is the only individual authorized to file amendments to this 

application. See Rule 11, SCRCP. Pro se filings will not be considered at the PCR hearing. SJ ~ 

2:n -'° Respondent reserves the right to request that any amendments withheld until the last minute~ 
,....,., 

z 

stricken because of undue prejudice to Respondent. See Rule 15(a), SCRCP. 

--1rr, 
l>::o 
~:-x:-r; 

-J c:or 
:O'Tlp7 

:s:- C")nc 
Pursuant to§ 17-27-150 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, Applicant may not im~e gg 

v;, c;:o 
:Z:--i 

formal discovery processes to issue subpoenas or otherwise obtain discovery materials unle~ :: 

granted leave from the Court upon a showing of good cause. Furthermore, Respondent requests 

that all potential exhibits and materials used to produce potential expert witness testimony be 

sent to Respondent well in advance of the evidentiary hearing. Respondent reserves the right to 

request a continuance and oppose witness testimony and exhibits that are withheld until the last 

minute resulting in undue prejudice to Respondent. 

VII. GENERAL DENIAL 

Respondent denies each allegation not expressly admitted, qualified, or explained. 
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VIII. CONCLUSION 

WHEREFORE, Respondent respectfully requests that this Court convene an evidentiary 

hearing on the allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel. 

Respectfully submitted, 

By: 

ALAN WILSON 
Attorney General 

W. JEFFREY YOUNG 
Chief Deputy Attorney General 

MEGAN HARRIGAN JAMESON 
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General 

JOHNNY ELLIS JAMES JR. 
A' 

, s.c. 29211 
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) 
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) 
) 
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Respondent. ) 
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2019-CP-42-1478 
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postage prepaid: 
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1 STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

2 COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 

3 

SAM BUNCH, 

APPLICANT, 

vs. 

) 
) COURT OF COMMON PLEAS NONJURY 
) 

) TRANSCRIPT 
) 
) OF 
) 
) RECORD 
) 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, ) 

10 

11 

12 

RESPONDENT. 
) 
) 

2019-CP-42-1478 

August 3rd , 2021 
Spartanburg, south Carolina 

13 BEFORE: 

14 THE HONORABLE H. STEVEN DeBERRY, IV, JUDGE. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

APPEARANCE 5: 

RODNEY RICHEY 
ESQ. 
Attorney for the Applicant 

CHELSEY MARTO 
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 
Attorney for the Respondent 

PAMELA E. GREEN 
circuit court Reporter 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

P R O C E E D I N G S 

THE COURT: Are you ready? 

MS. MARTO: Your Honor, may it please the court? 

5 THE COURT: sure. 

6 MS. MARTO: we're here today on the case of Sam Bunch. 

7 Docket Number 2019-CP-42-01478. 

8 He's confined in the south Carolina Department of 

9 corrections. He was charged for possession with intent to 

10 distribute cocaine within one-half mile of a school, 

11 possession with intent to distribute marijuana, possession 

12 with intent to distribute cocaine second offense, resisting 

13 arrest, possession with intent to distribute, a second 

14 count, of, of cocaine base second offense, and possession 

15 with intent to distribute marijuana within one-half mile of 

16 a school. 

17 Mr. James cheek represented him and, on August 29th , 

18 2018, he waived presentment and pled guilty to the above 

19 charges. The Honorable J. Derham Cole sentenced him to 

20 imprisonment for five -- concurrent terms of five years for 

21 possession with intent to distribute cocaine within a half 

22 mile, five years possession with intent to distribute 

23 marijuana, 24 -- possession with intent to distribute 

24 cocaine, one year for resisting arrest, 10 years for 

25 possession with intent to distribute cocaine, five years for 

3 
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1 possession with intent to distribute marijuana within 

2 one-half mile, and 10 years for possession with intent to 

3 

4 

5 

distribute cocaine within one-half mile of the school. He 

didn't appeal his plea or conviction. 

His PCR application was filed April 22 nd , 2019. His 

6 claims, as raised in the application, included denial of 

7 right to direct appeal and due process concerns concerning 

8 the fact that the court ignored the variance in the amount 

9 of drugs as stated in the indictment, counsel failed to do a 

10 proper investigation, counsel failed to request a lesser 

11 charge, and he was denied due process when the sentence was 

12 based on what was in the indictment instead of the amount 

13 that was actually proven. And then the State issued or made 

14 the return June 12th , 2019. 

15 And so I'll turn it over to Mr. Richey at this point. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you. 

MR. RICHEY: we call Mr. Bunch. Go stand on the bench 

or stand and raise your right-hand. Raise your right-hand 

and face the attorney. 

Judge. 

THE COURT: sir, you're Mr. Sam Lee Copeland Bunch. 

Is that right? 

THE APPLICANT: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: All right. 

SAM BUNCH, being first duly 

4 
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Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

sworn, testified as follows: 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. RICHEY: 

Q sir, Mr. Bunch, are you currently in the Department of 

corrections? 

7 A 

8 Q 

9 A 

Yes, sir. 

And what are you there for? 

Possession with intent to distribute crack cocaine, 

10 possession with intent to distribute cocaine, possession 

11 with intent to distribute marijuana, and a half mile of a 

12 school zone for each charge. 

13 Q 

14 A 

15 Q 

okay. 

And resisting arrest. 

Then on April 22 nd , 2019, you filed an Application 

16 

17 

for Post-Conviction Relief. 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

Q 

Is that correct? 

Yes. 

And, and who represented you on your charges? 

You talking about for the, the whole---

The criminal charges when you--. 

cheeks and I'm gonna say Rachel Kepley. 

okay. And, and you believed that -- you pled guilty to 23 

24 

25 

these charges, correct? 

A Yes. 
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1 Q 

Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

And you believed that, that your lawyer was ineffective 

2 

3 

that represented you at the guilty plea. 

4 A 

5 Q 

6 A 

Q 

Is that correct? 

Yes. 

And, and that was Mr. Cheeks? 

Yes. 

okay. And the, the issue you -- one of the issues you 7 

8 

9 

have then is the drug amounts, correct? 

A Yes. 

10 Q okay. can you kind of tell me briefly what happened 

11 when the, the police stopped you and retrieved the drugs or 

12 whatever? 

13 Go ahead. 

14 A when he stopped me and retrieved the drugs or whatever, 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

first it was like he had a warrant for my arrest but he 

didn't present no warrant or whatever. so, we began to -- I 

tried to flee. so he wind up arresting me and, after that, 

he checked my -- searched my pockets and that's when he 

found the drugs. 

20 Q 

21 A 

And how much drugs did he find? 

He found like each one of those drugs that he named --

22 

23 

that you just named. 

Q 

24 A 

25 Q 

okay. You, you got the transcript, right? 

Yeah. 

okay. And the total weight -- was the total weight of 

0 
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Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 this drug -- these drugs 1-gram---

2 A 

3 Q 

4 A 

The total--­

---or more? 

The total weight of all the drugs together was less 

5 

6 

7 

8 

than a gram. 

Q okay. And, and you believe that your sentence, your 

sentence -- that the lawyer should of asked for a lesser 

sentence? 

9 A 

10 Q 

11 A 

A lesser sentence. 

Correct? 

Yes, sir. 

12 Q And did you talk to him about that? 

13 A Yes, I talked to him about it and it's like he didn't 

14 

15 

even try to do nothing about it. 

Q when you say not do nothing about it, tell, tell me 

16 what you asked him. 

17 A I asked him -- I mean this charge is really suppose to 

18 

19 

20 

be a possession charge, not a possession with the intent. 

so, it should of had dropped from a possession with intent 

to a possession. 

21 Q okay. Did -- go ahead. I'm sorry. Excuse me. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

A so it didn't, it didn't drop or nothing. And so he had 

asked and so when I was like supposedly went to in 

front of a judge, a traveling judge, I can't think of her 

name, he, he stopped me from going in there. so I was 

I 
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1 

2 

3 

Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

coming into the courtroom and I was seated and he told me 

he said -- told me -- the officer told me to go sit -- to go 

back into the room. so, I went back into the room to talk 

4 to one of the other guys and they told me about they charge, 

5 which was a similar charge and he was like okay. 

6 And so he came back in there and talked to me and he 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

say you know they gonna try to give you 10 years. So I 'm ' 

like I can not see that. I can see me doing no 10 years for 

that. 

And so he left out. And so the police came right back 

in there. I say I wanted to go in front of that judge. 

so the police came back. I went back in front of the 

judge. He was looking at me real kind of strange like. And 

so he -- I came right to him and he was like why would you 

rather, you know what I'm saying, go for 10 years. 

so I looked at him like I mean why would I -- you 

talked to me about the trial, going through a trial. I 

said, I said okay well, why would I rather go to a trial, 

and if I am found guilty, can get the max instead of taking 

the chance of going in front of her and get 10 years. 

Q okay. 

A And so 

Q And so you discussed with him with that. 

Do you have the transcript up there? 

Do you have a copy of your transcript? 
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Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 A 

2 Q 

3 A 

Right here. 

You have it? 

Yes, sir. 

4 Q okay. I'm gonna be referring to Page 13 on there. 

5 

6 

7 

can you go to Page 13 for me and go to Lines 21 through 

25 and I want to ask you some questions about that. 

Are you there? 

8 A Yes. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

Q okay. on Lines -- on 21 through 13, the -- they talk 

about digital scales and crown Royal bag and all this stuff. 

Did, did you and your lawyer have a discussion about 

that particular evidence in the case? 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 A 

Yes, we had a discussion about that. 

And what was that? 

I mean the discussion was like -- as far as like the 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

scale, what was the scale about, you know what I'm saying. 

so, I'm like, you know what I'm saying, people can purchase 

drugs and still, you know what I'm saying, be a user and 

still purchase drugs or whatever. And so then, as you can 

see, one of the scales didn't even work. 

so, you talking about, about the marijuana part? 

Q No, about these -- I want to know did you have 

discussions with him about how that---

24 A 

25 Q 

oh, yeah. 

---affects your case for a term of possession with 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

intent to distribute? 

A No. 

Q Did he talk to you about the charge of possession with 

intent to distribute versus distribution or some other 

charge? 

6 A 

7 Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

Yes. 

He did? 

uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

And what, what did he say to you? 

10 A 

11 Q 

I mean that's just like what I just said. 

what did you -- I'm, I'm sorry. I missed it. Go 

12 

13 

ahead. say it again. 

can you say it again? 

14 A see he basically saying like with the scale, that can 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

be a charge. And so like he also said too he said well, 

people nowadays, when they -- even with a user or whatever, 

they still carry around the scale just so when they purchase 

drugs they can see what the amount is. 

Q well -- okay. so, tell me why you, why you just did 

not go to trial. 

21 A Because, like I said, as that, as that went on, like I 

22 

23 

24 

25 

said about the weed for -- was willingly to go in front of 

the judge, which he stopped me out of my own will from going 

in front of the judge. so, when I did actually go in front 

of the judge, the judge asked the -- she seen her last 
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11 

Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 person that day. 

2 so, I say probably maybe two or three days later I 

3 was -- I came back and I had got knowledge that I would be 

4 

5 

6 

7 

going to court at a different time. so, he came back in and 

talked to me. He was talking to me about the trial. And so 

I said okay. 

so, when he telling me about the trial, so I said I 

8 wanted to go with it. so, when me and him was down here and 

9 he had like a couple more people talking about the trial, 

10 and how the way the trial works, which we was gonna be going 

11 in front of the judge, so I told him, I said I need time to 

12 think or whatever and -- about the trial cause he was 

13 telling me about a, a different time. 

14 And so, and so I still was like nah, don't see that 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

with the charges right there and my record. It just don't 

go with the sentence that he's trying to -- you know what 

I'm saying? 

And so next thing I know he got mad. He jumped up and 

he got real mad and he said you going in front of that 

trial. so, he said you going in front of that trial. He 

21 got real mad and kind of like pushed the chair. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

And so I said I ain't going in front of that trial. I 

said I need time to think. And so the, the co that was in 

there, the officer, he told me -- he was like well, you 

still have to go upstairs. 
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Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 so, me and him, as I came upstairs, he came up before 

2 me, my ex-girlfriend, she was sitting down and a couple more 

3 other people. They seen him and we continued to argue. 

4 And so -- so when they came for us to come back 1n, I 

5 was over there and he still was -- he still was like 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

arguing. He say I'm gonna make sure you get 25 years if you 

go in front of the trial. And so -- you know what I'm 

saying? 

so, my girl sitting over there. My ex was sitting over 

there. And so I looked at her and then she I was like, 

11 you know what I'm saying, what you, what you I think should 

12 do, you know what I'm saying, giving hand expression and she 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

was like -- so, he carried her outside. And so she came 

back in and she was like just listen to him. And so 

Q 

went 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

well, let me ask you a question. You said that he, he 

against your will or something. 

Yes. 

Is that what you said? 

uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

okay. I'm gonna refer you to the transcript. 

Now, can you go to Page 7 of the transcript? 

seven. 

All right. And I'm gonna take you to the Line 8 and 

it, and it says has anybody threatened you or forced you or 

placed you under any pressure upon you. No, sir. Are you 
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1 

2 

3 

Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

pleading guilty free and voluntary. Yes, sir. 

If -- tell me why you answered those questions that 

way. 

4 A Because, just like it has in my paperwork when I, when 

5 I studied in the law library that says that when a person --

6 when you -- when your lawyer or something threatened you or, 

7 or coerced you to say something because you feeling like 

8 under pressure that you gonna get a specific time, then 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

that's what you gonna say. so that's why. 

Q so you're saying that these answers that you gave the 

judge, they were under duress and pressure from your---

A It was under right of pressure. 

Q All right. Now, you -- in this application, let me 

see, what -- you're, you're -- your max out date is 2023, 

correct? 

16 A 

17 Q 

uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

And you'll be eligible for parole in the next year, 

18 right? 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

Yes, sir. 

And you're on a work release yard, right? 

Yes. 

Tell me what remedy are you seeking from this court? 

I'm seeking a lesser sentence. 

You're seeking a lesser sentence? 

A lesser sentence. 
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Sam Bunch - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 Q okay. And if the court can not give you a lesser 

2 sentence, then what is your other relief in this case? 

3 A 

4 Q 

5 A 

Like if the court can not give me a lesser sentence? 

Right. 

I mean I'm just, I'm just gonna have to do, do some 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

more study or whatever. 

Q If the court can only give you a new trial, is that the 

remedy you want if that's the only thing the court could do 

for you? 

Is that -- would that be a remedy you want to have to 

start over? 

A No, I actually would love -- would like to see what the 

procedure of what the judge will do. But it says the remedy 

could be a, a lesser vacated sentence or a lesser sentence. 

Q okay. All right. Answer the questions the attorney 

general will have for you. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MARTO: 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

Good morning, sir. 

Good morning. 

so approximately how many times did you meet with 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Mr. cheek leading up to the plea hearing? 

A 

Q 

I'm gonna say like maybe three. 

okay. And y'all discussed your decision between 

pleading and going to trial? 
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Sam Bunch - cross-examination 
By Ms. Marto 

1 A Yeah, we discussed all that. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Q okay. And you decided to plead instead of going to 

trial . 

Is that correct? 

A Yes, and the -- that was the reason, like I told him, 

6 the reason why I had decided to go to the plea was because 

7 what he had, like I said, I feeled threatened and he 

8 threatened me with the 25 years. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

Q so, you were concerned that you would be facing more 

time 1n prison if you went to trial instead of pleading, 

right? 

A Yes, because the simple fact that I don't have the 

knowledge that I had -- I didn't have the knowledge then 

that I have now. 

Q okay. But you did still plead because you thought you 

16 would get less time, right? 

17 A 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 Q 

uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

okay. 

Yes, ma'am. 

And when you pled you knew what charges you were 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

pleading to? 

A Yes. 

Q okay. Did you know the potential sentencing ranges 

even if you didn't think the max would be imposed? 

A No, cause he told me that he would try -- he said he 

54



Sam Bunch - Cross-examination 
By Ms. Marto 

1 would try to do the five years. 

2 

3 

4 

Q 

A 

Q 

okay. But were you informed that it could be larger? 

Hu huh. (Negative). 

okay. I'm looking at Pages 7 through 9 of the 

5 transcript and it shows that Judge Cole did tell you that 

6 you could face up to 10 years for intent to distribute 

lb 

7 ·cocaine within a half mile of a school and also on Page 8 it 

8 shows, starting with Line 17, that you also understand the 

9 possession with intent to distribute cocaine second offense 

10 carries up to 30 years in jail. 

11 You remember that at all or no? 

12 

13 

14 

15 

A 

Q 

Somewhat. 

somewhat. 

okay. And yet you still decided to plead because you 

thought that you would face less time, correct? 

16 A Yes. 

17 

18 

19 

Q okay. Did you -- in re -- if you got a chance to do it 

all over again, would you want to go to trial on these 

charges now when you're about to max out next year? 

20 A I mean, like I said, I rather see what the judge -- if 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

he can do like a, you know what I'm saying, a lesser 

sentence or whatever. 

Q okay. so what you would like 1s to get out pretty much 

immediately? 

That's the only relief you would ask for? 
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1 A 

Sam Bunch - cross-examination 
By Ms. Marta 

I mean it can be take the 20 year probation or, you 

ii 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

know what I'm saying, cause that's really too much. Twenty 

years probation -- I mean 20 years suspended to three years. 

You know, something like -- I mean he can take that. 

Q okay. Now, do you remember whether or not your lawyer 

requested that you face the mandatory minimum when it came 

to the charges? 

Did he say anything on your behalf to try and get a 

lesser sentence in front of the judge? 

10 A He -- it's like to me he was waiting I mean he was 

11 

12 

13 

against me. That what it seem like to me. 

Q 

A 

14 Q 

15 A 

16 Q 

17 A 

Your lawyer was against you--­

uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

---in representing you? 

uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

okay. 

Because my thing is why would he try to stop me from 

18 

19 

20 

going in front of a traveling judge that she wasn't really 

too harsh on the sentencing and going in front of Judge 

Cole. 

21 Q okay. so, you felt that your lawyer was against you by 

22 bringing you in front of Judge Cole? 

23 A 

24 Q 

uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

okay. well, I am looking at Pages 15 through 17 of the 

25 transcripts. specifically Line 12 of Page 17 that says 
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Sam Bunch - cross-examination 
By Ms. Marta 

1 Mr. cheek says we'd ask the court to consider the minimum 

2 sentence. 

3 Do you remember that at all, your lawyer asking for the 

4 mandatory minimum? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

A He said, he said minimum sentence but he also stated 

that he was gonna try to get me home detention. And so with 

him, with him stating that, he also stated that I think that 

he need a little more time. 

so, why would he say home detention and, and then, once 

he get in front of the judge, he say he needs a little time? 

11 Q okay. But you were told by the judge at the plea 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

hearing what the sentencing ranges could be, right? 

A uh-huh. (Affirmative). 

Yes. 

MS. MARTO: okay. No more questions, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. okay. 

MR. RICHEY: No other questions. 

we call James cheeks. 

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. cheeks. 

THE WITNESS: Good morning, Your Honor. 

JAMES CHEEK, being first duly 

sworn, testified as follows: 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you for being here. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. RICHEY: 
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1 Q 

2 A 

3 Q 

4 A 

5 

6 

Q 

7 A 

8 Q 

9 A 

10 Q 

James cheek - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

can you state your name please? 

James Arthur cheek. 

And, Mr. cheeks, are you--­

cheek. 

cheek. cheek. 

Are you a lawyer in Spartanburg county? 

I am. 

And do you recall representing Mr. Bunch in this case? 

I do. 

And you've been in the courtroom and I'm gonna ask you 

11 a series of questions about the issues we brought up. 

12 As -- on Page 7 of this transcript I referred Mr. Bunch 

13 to whether he was coerced into pleading or was he pleading 

14 voluntarily, and Mr. Bunch's position was that you 

15 threatened him with the 25 years. 

16 Do you recall doing that? 

A I think my recollection is that the sentence carried a 17 

18 

19 

20 

minimum mandatory 25 years up to 30 years and I explained to 

him that, upon conviction, he would not be able to get 

anything less than 25 years in prison. 

21 Q okay. Did -- so you went over the facts of the case 

22 with him --

23 A 

24 Q 

25 A 

I did. 

-- the facts and the situation that was going on? 

I did. 
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1 Q 

2 A 

James cheek - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

And can you tell me why was he facing so much time? 

I felt that, at trial, the State would use the theory 

LU 

3 of circumstantial evidence given that the circumstances were 

4 that he had a prior criminal history involving drugs, had 

5 just been paroled a year prior to this incident happening 

6 from the Department of corrections on a sentence. 

7 And I explained to him that, frankly, looking at the 

8 circumstances, that they're very few drug addicts who carry 

9 around with them something as elevated as a crown Royal bag 

10 with drugs and scales in it, multiple kinds of drugs. There 

11 are very few people who both use cocaine and crack cocaine 

12 and pills all at the same time and that I felt that, at 

13 trial, a jury could be convinced beyond a reasonable doubt 

14 by the solicitor's office to consider conviction based upon 

15 the circumstances. 

16 we're talking about a gentleman who would be before a 

17 jury that did not know him, that they would look at his 

18 manner of dress, his manner of composing himself in the 

19 community, the way that he presented himself at trial, would 

20 probably be something that a jury would consider a person 

21 who really didn't reflect a kind of addiction that he 

22 purported to have and that he also had monies on him. 

23 I explained to him that had he gone to a drug house or 

24 had been involved in purchasing drugs within -- immediately 

25 time before this confrontation with law enforcement, that 
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James cheek - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 most probably Ms. Ustimchuk would be able to convince a jury 

2 beyond a reasonable doubt that this is a person that, had he 

3 had the kind of addiction that he would of been asserting at 

4 trial, that you would not be buying such small amounts of 

5 

6 

7 

8 

drugs and still have money left. You would take advantage 

of a bargain. 

All of that is the way that the solicitor's office 

presents cases before a jury. I knew he had not been in 

9 front of a jury or been at a jury trial in this circuit and 

10 that he needed to consider all of that, not just who he is, 

11 but the way he will be projected in the circumstances under 

12 which he would be projected and the image that a jury of his 

13 peers, who actually did not know him as well as I knew him, 

14 that he would be made like a bad person and that most 

15 probably he'd be convicted beyond a reasonable doubt based 

16 upon the circumstances of this case. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q And, and you're, you're referring to what was on the 

transcript when I went over with Mr. Bunch on Page 13 about 

the scales and all this. 

well, let me ask you, this, this stuff about this 

traveling judge that was here and him not going in front of 

the traveling judge, is that was -- do you recall any of 

that or did he want to plead in front of a judge or not 

plead in front of the judge? 

A I don't recall the traveling judge scenario. I don't 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

James cheek - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

know who the traveling judge would of been. I don't have 

the best recollection about who the traveling judge would of 

been. 

He mentioned a female traveling judge for a trial, and 

I -- I'm assuming he must or may have meant Judge Verdin 

from Greenville. I know she was in and out of here during 

7 that period of time. 

8 But I certainly would of told him that, if he went to 

9 trial and was convicted, that the traveling judge, if it 

10 were Judge Verdin he's making reference to, that -- and I 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

don't remember that. But had I said it, it would of been 

based upon the fact of a conviction that what other option 

would any judge have other than to give you the minimum 

mandatory sentence and then he would of had charges still 

pending that he had not addressed or whatever. 

I'm not sure what the State would of done. But if he 

had anything else pending, and I most con -- and I don't 

know if I told him this or not but I also always consider 

that, prior to trial, that the charges go to the Grand Jury 

and one thing that would of come out as an additional 

indictment from the Grand Jury would of been a resisting 

arrest charge. 

All of that would of been at trial and I'm sure I would 

of had such conversations with him. I don't deny having a 

conversation with him. But taking to mind that my job with 
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James cheek - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

1 the Public Defender's office is to only present the guilty 

2 pleas, if he wanted to go to trial, I would of been very, 

3 very, very, very glad to have backed off and had the case go 

4 back to the assigned trial attorney in our staff. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

It would of been less work for me. I'm not a selfish 

person but I'd been glad to turn it over to the person to 

prepare for trial had he been insistent on a trial. 

I mean why would I not do that? 

Q so, so you discussed with him, although the drug 

amounts were not -- I use the word---

11 A 

12 Q 

13 A 

14 Q 

15 A 

16 Q 

Significant. 

---big--­

That's right. 

---that all the other--­

Not significant at all. 

---circumstances---

17 A The circumstances, the purple bag, the three kinds of 

18 

19 

20 

drugs in the bag, money. I mean very few drug addicts walk 

around with a crown Royal bag with money on their person. 

Q 

21 A 

Do you, do you believe he understood those talks? 

Absolutely. He's a very intelligent, articulate person 

22 

23 

24 

25 

with whom I have a great deal of respect and love. Yes, I, 

I can not say he did not understand. I think he did 

understand and I think more so he understood he had a 12 

year old daughter he needed to get back to as soon as 
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3 
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5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

James cheek - Direct examination 
By Mr. Richey 

possible and I think that ultimately he's right in the sense 

he would love to have a lesser sentence. 

I would love for him to have a lesser sentence but this 

is not the protocol or the arena for that to happen. 

Q 

A 

I---

I suggest he look at parole because he's not eligible 

for parole next year. He's eligible for parole this year in 

December. 

Q And, and do you believe it'd be in this best interest 

to get a new trial based off---

11 A I do not. If he goes back for a new trial, they're 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

gonna try him. If he's convicted, he's looking at 25 years 

to 80 percent in prison. 

MR. RICHEY: one moment, Your Honor. 

(Pause.) 

MR. RICHEY: No other questions, Your Honor. Excuse 

me. 

THE COURT: All right. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. MARTO: 

21 Q 

22 

Morning, sir. 

How you doing today? 

Doing well. Thank you. 

Good. 

23 A 

24 Q 

25 so you've been practicing criminal defense law for 
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2 

3 

James cheek - Cross-examination 
By Ms. Marto 

approximately how long, sir? 

A Forty years. 

Q okay. And it was based upon that experience you were 

4 worried that he would likely lose at trial, correct? 

5 A 

6 Q 

7 A 

8 Q 

Absolutely. 

And that's why you encouraged him to take a plea? 

I did. 

And it's your perception that instead of threatening 

9 him with 25 years you cautioned him? 

10 A No, I made him well aware of the statute. we're 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

required to do that. He has to understand what he's facing 

at trial. 

Q so, you just encouraged him to consider pleading 

because of the sentence range that he would be facing at 

trial, correct? 

16 A I did. 

L) 

17 Q And it's your understanding that it was his decision to 

18 plead? 

19 A 

20 Q 

Absolutely. 

And you did not, in your perception, coerce, coerce him 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

into pleading? 

A I think not with my perception but the perception that 

his fiancee had when I, at his request, went outside and 

spoke with her about the entire situation so that she would 

have a better understanding of the criminal trial process as 
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James cheek - cross-examination 
By Ms. Marto 

1 well as what my perception was of the evidence in the case. 

2 I think that probably because of the telephone conversations 

3 he had with her from the jail she didn't have a full 

4 comprehension what was going on. 

5 so, I did make the extra effort of discussing the 

6 matter with the family outside of the courtroom, and when 

7 they came back in, she gave him the high sign to go ahead 

8 and enter the plea. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

MS. MARTO: okay. No more questions, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: 

MR. RICHEY: 

THE WITNESS: 

THE COURT: 

THE WITNESS: 

MS. MARTO: 

THE COURT: 

All right. 

No other questions. 

Thank you. 

Thank you, Mr. cheek, for being here. 

Thank you. 

Quick closing remark, Your Honor? 

sure. 

was that all your witnesses? 

MR. RICHEY: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: okay. 

MS. MARTO: No witnesses from the state, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. 

MS. MARTO: Your Honor, it is our position that the 

23 Applicant has failed to reach his burden of proof in proving 

24 the allegations. 

25 Regardless of what the actual amount of the drugs were, 
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1 he knew the charges he was pleading to. He pled 

2 voluntarily, and willingly, and knowingly. He was made 

3 aware by Judge Cole of the sentencing ranges imposed and 

4 given the advice of counsel in pleading because he would 

5 likely face less time. 

LI 

6 Additionally he is already stated that he does not wish 

7 to seek another trial and his counsel has stated that the 

8 trial would not be in his best interest at this point given 

9 the fact that he is maxed out next year. 

10 Thank you. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

THE COURT: I understand. 

All right. 

MR. RICHEY: Your Honor, I think the testimony was 

that -- and, and I've discussed with my client that, that 

the remedies. under my understanding of the law, the court 

can't cut his sentence. I mean you cut -- the court can't 

17 do that. 

18 so, you know, it, it sounds like to me on the witness 

19 stand that he would want a new trial if the court can not 

20 cut his sentence. 

21 Is that right? 

22 THE APPLICANT: Yes. 

23 MR. RICHEY: And so we'd ask, based off the testimony 

24 and evidence presented, the court vacate his sentence and 

25 order a new trial. 
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1 Thank you, Your Honor. 

2 THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much. 

3 THE APPLICANT: can I say something? 

4 (WHEREUPON, the Applicant confers with Mr. Richey at 

5 this time.) 

6 MR. RICHEY: Your Honor, I, I know the court doesn't 

7 give an advisory opinion but I told him that the court can 

8 not reduce his sentence. The court can order a new trial 

9 and, and I don't know if that ruling would affect what he's 

10 doing but that's, that's, that's, that's some breakdown in 

11 that. But I advised him the court can not reduce or modify 

12 his sentence. 

13 THE COURT: And, Mr. Bunch, that is my understanding, 

14 okay, that, you know, and if you prevail here today, then 

15 you'll find yourself back in the position that you were in 

16 just before you entered this guilty plea and the State's 

17 gonna be in a position to handle the charges any way they 

18 wish to at that point in time. 

19 Is that something -- you understand that? 

20 THE APPLICANT: So, what, you can't do a lesser 

21 sentence or--? 

22 THE COURT: No, sir, I don't believe this court can, 

23 can do that in this situation. what we can do is we can 

24 vacate your sentence and basically put you back in the 

25 position that you were in before you entered your plea, 
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1 before your case was resolved. And, at that point in time, 

2 you'd have the opportunity to exercise your right to a jury 

3 trial or to enter another guilty plea. 

4 so that's something you'll need to consider. 

5 Is that, is that the State's understanding as well? 

6 MS. MARTO: That's our understanding as well, Your 

7 Honor. 

8 THE COURT: And the defense? 

9 THE APPLICANT: well, I done---

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

MR. RICHEY: Yes, sir. 

THE APPLICANT: Well, I had read in the law that y'all 

can like give me a lesser sentence. That ain't -- I mean as 

far as like going to trial, that just one method that y'all 

can do. so, y'all also can vacate the sentence or you can 

give me a lesser sentence. 

THE COURT: Well---

THE APPLICANT: This what, this what I read out, out 

the law book. 

THE COURT: I understand. I understand your 

understanding of that. 

okay? 

THE APPLICANT: Yeah. 

THE COURT: Don't get me wrong. I understand exactly 

24 what you're saying to the court. 

25 what I'm telling you is, is that I don't, I don't 
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1 believe that's the case. 

2 okay. Now, the court makes decisions that are not 

3 right all the time. 

4 You understand that? 

5 But with -- I believe that the law is that's -- that 

6 the only remedy that I can afford to you in this situation 

7 is to vacate your sentence. 

8 All right. And if the court chooses to do that, based 

jV 

9 on your application, then that puts you back in the position 

10 that you were in before you entered your plea and the -- the 

11 state could prosecute these charges how they see fit and you 

12 could enter another plea or you could go to a trial. That 

13 would be your decision at that point. 

14 (Pause.) 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. RICHEY: All right. Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. so it's the court's 

understanding that I'm, I'm gonna decide this case based on 

the evidence that's in, in the record. 

Is that right? 

MR. RICHEY: Yes, sir. 

THE COURT: All right. 

THE APPLICANT: Yes. so since you say you can't do a 

lesser, lesser sentence, so I just guess I'll just go on 

ahead and just -- cause they ain't even gonna be no need. 

THE COURT: Well, I don't, I don't understand if you're 
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1 trying to withdraw your application at this point in time. 

2 I can tell you that I'm not inclined to, to grant your 

3 application, your application anyway. 

4 okay. so I mean I can go ahead and rule that I don't, 

5 that I don't think there was any -- that you haven't met 

6 your burden of proof here in this hearing and that your 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

application for Post-conviction Relief is denied. 

so, I don't think it makes much of a difference. If 

you'd like to withdraw, I understand that as well. But I 

think you'd be in -- left in the same position. 

MR. RICHEY: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. 

MS. MARTO: Thank you, Your Honor. 

*END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD'' 
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• I 

ST ATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) FOR THE SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRtUIT ~ 

) ~n ~ 
► ::::'M (/) 77 ) i'=-1 :::: 5: :2 " Sam Bunch, #352590, ) Case No.: 20I9-CP-42-014 78 -<OJ ...... ,_." 

Applicant, ) ~§~ .s:- ' . .... -"'I 

! ' ) (") G') 0 
O 0 

:x,. ' .. 
:::i: 

V. ) ORDER OF DISMISSAL x8::..: 
'!? c:~ 

) - -i z .c:--; 
State of South Carolina, ) -< 

Respondent. ) 

This matter comes before this Court by way of Applicant's post-conviction relief 

application filed April 22, 2019. Respondent made its return on June 12, 2019, requesting an 

/ 
evidentiary hearing to be convened. An cvidentiary hearing was held on August 3, 2021, at the 

Spartanburg County Courthouse. Attorney Rodney W. Richey represented Applicant. Assistant 

Attorney General Chelsey Marta represented Respondent. 

•::i 

Applicant testified on his own behalf at the evidcntiary hearing. Counsel James A. Check 

also testified. After reviewing all records and evidence before this Court, the Court finds 

Applicant cannot meet his requisite burden of proof entitling him to post-conviction relief. The 

Court denies and dismisses this application with prejudice. Findings of fact and conclusions of 

law are set forth.below. 

Procedural History 

Applicant is confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections pursuant to orders 

of commitment of the Spartanburg County Clerk of Court. Applicant was charged for possession 

with intent to distribute cocaine wiµtln one-half mile of a school (2018-GS-42-04545), 

possession with intent to distribute marijuana (2018-GS-42-04546), possession with intent to 

distribute cocaine, third olTense (2018-GS-42-04547); resisting arrest (2018-GS-42-04548); 

possession with intent to distribute cocaine base, third offense (20 I 8-GS-42-04549), possession 
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• I 

with intent to distribute marijuana within one-half mile of a school (2018-GS-42-04550), and 

possession with intent to distribute cocaine base within one-half mile of a school (2018-GS-42-

04551 ). Attorney James A. Check represented Applicant. Attorney Tatyuna Stepanova 
/ 

Ustimchuk prosecuted the case. On August 29, 2018, Applicant pied guilty before the Honorable 

J. Derham Cole as indicted on all charges with a recommendation of concurrent sentencing and 

the cocaine and cocaine base charges being dropped from third to second offenses. Judge Cole 

sentenced Applicant to imprisonment for concurrent terms .of five years for PWID cocaine within 
./ 

a half-mile, five years for PWID marijuana, twenty years for PWID cocaine, one yeat for 

v 
resisting arrest, ten years for PWID cocaine base, five years for PW!D marijuana within a half-

/ 0 ~ 
mile, and ten years for PWID cocaine base within a half-mile. Applicant did not ap~~' his]lea 

:i,:::!Fn ~ 77 
or sentence. :t: 5..: ::1 -o --<a,.,,,. .. 

:': § Q .- t 

Summary of Relevant Facts ~-i ,.;-, n :::,. ; T1 
on C · ::: l J 

On June 30, 2018, Officer Lawrence Smith was on foot patrol when hes;~ ~Jiplic5ln, 
~ ';. ~ .. , 

whom he knew had a warrant'out for his arrest. (Tr. 13). Deputy Smitli approached Applic;;i, 

told him he was under arrest, and told him to put his hands behind his back. (Tr. 13). Applicant 

failed to comply and attempted to flee. (Tr. 13), Officer Smith subdued Applicant after a brief 

scuffie and placed him in handcuffs. (Tr. 13). Officer Smith performed a search on Applicant's 

person, which revealed a field weight of seven grams of marijuana, two scales, a purple Crown 

Royal bag containing five clear baggies with an off-white substance, and multiple bills consisting 

of various denominations. (Tr. 13-14). The drugs found on Applicant consisted of 5.95 grams of 

marijuana, two baggies containing .12 grams of cocaine, and one baggie containing .30 grams of 

cocaine base. (Tr. 14). 
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• I 

Current Action before this Court 

In his current PCR application, Applicant alleges he is being held in custody unlawfully 

because of ineffective assistance of counsel: 

1. "Denied the right to direct appeal" 
2. "Denied of Due Process" 

a . "Court ignored the variance in the amount of drugs stated in the indictment in 

the actual amount stated in the lab report" 

b. "Counsel failed to do a proper investigation, counsel foiled to request a lesser 

charge based on the evidence presented" 

c. "Denied Due Process when I were sentenced based on what were in the 

indictment instead of what the amount actually proven" -

At the PCR hearing, Applicant proceeded forward on the following allegations: 

I. Ineffective Assistance of Counsel (/) ,.._, 
a. Failure to seek reduced charges ~ 0 ~ 

i. Failure to argue or otherwise get charges reduced to sillll)l~ses~on, -17 
as opposed to possession with intent to distribute ~ 5 ~ ~ :::: 

b. For incorrectly telling Applicant he would either be sentenced ta:l¢Sfiimcf" ;_'. ,._n 
than what was actually imposed 8 ~ 8 :!; : l 

i. Coerced guilty pica >< 2 § c, ~,J 
a. Counsel told Applicant he would face more time ifhe went to trial~ili~reb.y 

threatening him into pleading -< -

All other allegations raised in his initial application and amendments are deemed waived 

and abandoned and, accordingly, will not be addressed in this order. 

Summary of the Testimony 

Applica11t Testimony 

Applicant testified be entered a guilty plea. He testified that the police omccr stopped 

him and did not present a warrant. Applicant fled, was caught, and was found with cocaine and 

marijuana in his pockets. Applicant stated he wanted Counsel to ask for a lesser sentence, but 

Counsel did not. Applicant also stated that he should have been charged and convicted of simple 

possession, not possession with intent to distribute. Applicant stated that Counsel told him he 
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would only be sentenced to ten years' imprisonment. Applicant stated he did not want to go to 

trial because he thought he would receive more time than he did by pleading. 

Applicant stated that he discussed the scales, bag, and drugs with his attorney and stated 

it was all because he was a user, not a distributor. Applicant also testified that one of the scales 

did not work. Applicant stated that he discussed the scale with Counsel, who said it would 

support a possession with intent to distribute charge. Applicant stated he told Counsel that users 

can still possess scales without intending to distribute. 

Applicant stated he talked to Counsi:l about tlie trial';-specifically; that nc· needed time to 

think about either pica or trial. Applicant stated he did not agree with the charges and sentence 
CJ) ......, 

~ ·:e 
relative to his prior record. ~ p V'l -;i 

~ >~ ~ 
Applicant stated that Counsel at one point became angry with him and told~~~c was r-~ 

~ ~ ., &' · ··=1 

going to trial. Applicant stated he refused. Applicant said his tlicn•girlfiiend saw t@ig ~guitig as ; ..:..1 >< g~ I!? .,__ 
they entered the courtroom. Applicant stated that Counsel told him he would make s~lne i~ 

~. 
sentenced to twenty-five years if he proceeded to trial. Applicant testified that Counsel looked al • 

his then-girlfriend with "hand expressions" to see what he should do. Applicant stated she was 

taken out of the room and then came back in and told Applicant to listen lo Counsel. 

Applicant stated he was not threatened into pleading, but said he W!lli coerced and 

pressured by his lawyer lo plead. Applicant stated he did not want a new trial but, instead, 

wanted a sentence reduction or a vacated sentence. 

On cross-examination, Applicant stated he met with Counsel three times before the plea 

to discuss pleading or going lo trial. He stated he-remembered being told he could face up to 

thirty years .imprisonment for one of the charges, but still thought he would get less time. He 

stated he decided to plea because he felt threatened by Cowiscl. Applicant stated that Counsel 
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told him he would likely serve more time by going to trial. He stated he wants a lesser sentence, 

but failed to state he would rather have gone to trial . Applicant stated Counsel was against him 

and wa~ upset that the pica hearing was before Judge Cole. Applicant stated that Counsel 

requested he serve the minimum sentence, but Counsel really should have-requested home 

detention. Applicant stated that he was informed of the sentencing ranges that were associated 

with the charges. 

Co1111sel .Testimony 

Counsel stated·that"he did not threaten Applicant, but irtstciid lcfhini know that his main 

charge carried twenty-five to thirty years ' imprisonment. Counsel infonncd Applicant that ifhe 

went to trial, he likely would have been sentenced to less than twenty-five years. He stated he 

t? ~ 
reviewed the facts of the case, and that Applicant was facing significant time beca~ of ~ 

:::,0 -

circumstantial evidence against him. Counsel stated he had prior convictions for~@cd~g :-'! 
-< (v , , - .. ,.._ 

crimes, had just been paroled, and that he has seen very few·drug addicts who ~~unf 7=1 
crown royal bag with multiple drugs and scales. Counsel stated lhat a jury would!&; fi;.him~:I 

z · -l .s:-

guilty beyond a reasonable doubt and would not view him favorably due to his prcs~ntation.' 

Counsel stated that he did not demonstrate a person of addiction that he claimed to be, and that 

he had .money on him. Counsel claims that if it was simply an addiction and he was not dealing, 

he would not be buying a small amount of drugs while also leaving money in his pocket. 

Counsel stated that if he went to trial it would have been before a traveling judge; likely 

Judge Verdin, though he does not recall for certain. Regardless, Counsel stated that if Applicant 

was found guilty at trial the Judge would have had no choice but to sentence him to the 

-mandatory.minimum and that his other pending charges would have remained unaddressed. 

Specifically, Counsel said his resisting arrest charge would have been presented to the grand 
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jury. Counsel stated that he would have loved it if this case went to trial because then another 

attorney would have handled it, given that Counsel only handles criminal cases involving pleas. 

Counsel stated that Applicant is an articulate and intelligent person who understood their 

discussions. Counsel stated he understands this to be true because Counsel personally adopted 

Applicant's biological brother. Counsel stated that Applicant had a twelve-year-old daughter he 

wanted to gel back to as soon as possible. Counsel stated that a lesser sentence would be great, 

but he could not get one given his background and charges. Counsel stated a new trial would not 

be in Applicant's best-interest. · 

On cross-examination, Counsel stated he has been practicing criminal law for forty years 

·and that his experience indicated to him that Applicant would have lost at trial. Counsel stated he 

made Applicant well aware of the potential sentencing ranges and encouraged him to pica on that 

basis. Counsel stated it was Applicant's decision .to plead and that he was not threatened or 
(/) ....., 
·o = 

coerced into pleading. Counsel stated he spoke with Applicant's then-liance, who ultfin!ilely;: 
> ~ r,; ,-,, -n 
:;.:>-::,:::0 -0 

supported his decision to plead. =< ffi ;;-: 
< . ...,..~!'?. ,&:" 

Court Colloq11y 111itli Applicant 8 ~ 8 §; f :Q 
xo~ o:i --' c.,,. : .. 

After testimony, the Court engaged Applicant in a colloquy, informing him thN1f cnl)ftot 

reduce his sentence, but can only put him in the position he was in before the pica, where he can 

either plea again or proceed to trial. Applicant insists he can get a lesser sentence because he has 

read it in a law book. The Court, after confirming with both Applicant's PCR Counsel and the 

State, informed him that the court cannot give him a sentence reduction. Applicant began 

deliberating whether or not he wanted to withdraw or proceed forward with the hearing. The 

Court, recognizing this deliberation, stated that he was going to deny relief for Applicant's 
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failure to meet his burden of proof anyway, which would put him in the same position as if the 

application was withdrawn. Accordingly, the Court denied relief. 

Findings ·of Fact and Conclusions of Law 

This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in its entirety and has heard the 

testimony and arguments presented at the PCR hearing. Before this Court are the Spartanburg 

County Clerk of Court Records, Applicant's South Carolina Department of Corrections Records, 

the plea transcript; and this PCR: action's records. This Court has further h-iia tlic opportunity to 

observe each witness who testified at the hearing.and to closely pass upon their credibility. This 

Court has weighed the testimony accordingly. Set forth below arc the relevant finding&'Of fac~ 
--;J = 
>n ~ 

and conclusion of law as required by South Carolina Code Annotated Section 17-2~@)0:ffi 
~?ii;:: ,, 

l11ejfective Assistance of Counsel ~ ~ ~ &"' 

o Cl 0 ::--. 

In a PCR action, the applicant bears the burden of proving allegations contairi~ fu th~ 
c;,; = :z -; .. 

application. Butler v. State , 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Effective assistance:-c)f co~I 

dcies not mean perfect or mistake-free representation. See Weaver v. Massachit5e/ts, 137 S. Ct. 

1899 (2017) ("[A] defendant has a right to effective representation, not a right to nn atlorney who 

performs his duties 'mistake-free."' (citation omitted)); Burt v. Titlow, 571 U.S. 12, 24 (2013) 

("(T]he Sixth Amendment does not guarantee the right to perfect counsel; it promises only the 

right to effective assistance[.]"); Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. 1, 8 (2003) ("The Sixth 

Amendment guarantees reasonable competence, not perfect advocacy judged with the benefit of 

hindsight."). Instead, it simply means assistance that was objectively reasonable under prevailing 

professional norms. Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-688. 

When an applicant asserts ineffective assistance of counsel as a ground for relief, the 
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applicant must show "counsel's conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial 

process that [it] cannot be relied upon as having produced a just result." Strickland v. 

Washington , 466 U.S. 668,686 (1984); Butler, 286 S.C. at 442,334 S.E.2d at 814. Ineffective 

assistance of counsel is governed by the Sixth Amendment, as explained by the United States 

Supreme Court in Strickland v. Washington. 

Under the first prong of the Strickland analysis, the applicant must prove defense 

counsel's performance was deficient. Id. at 686; Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 117,386 S.E.2d 

624, 625 (1989): To show a deficiency, the applicant musi prove by a preponderance of the 

evidence that counsel ' s actions fell outside of the zone of"rcasonableness under prevailing 

professional norms." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688. See also Rule 71.l(e), SCRCP ("1ihc applicant 
-0 = >n ~ 

has the burden of establishing his entitlement to relief by a preponderance of the eJ{jjnee. "Pr 'Tl 
3:z:::' \J 
~< Ci'1 .,.. -

Reasonableness is determined by the "variety of circumstances faced by defense ~~ or4he I 

n G) r., :,;,. rn 
range of legitimate decisions regarding how to best represent a criminal defendanW'f~ th~ •,,_) 

scope of the reasonableness inquiry is.limited to facts counsel had available at the tittje of ::: 

representation. Id at 689. "Counsel is strongly presumed to have rendered adequate assistance 

and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable professional judgment." 

Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. l, 5 (2003) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690); see Dunn v . 

. Rewes, 141 S. Ct. 2405, 24 JO (2021) (noting counsel's strategic decisions arc to be afforded 

"strong presumption" of reasonableness that the defendant must overcome); Cullen v. Pinholster, 

563 U.S. 170, 189 (201 I) (explaining a defendant must show defense counsel failed lo acl 

reasonably considering all the circumstances to overcome the presumption of adequate 

representation). Judicial scrutiny of counsel's performance remains highly deferential towards 

defense counsel with a strong presumption that counsel acted competently, because competent 

Page 8 of 14 

79



representation may be executed in virtually ''countless" ways. Srrickland, 466 U.S. at 688-89. 

Second, counsel's deficient pcrfonnance must have prejudiced the applicant so that 

"there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's unprofessional errors, the result of the 

proceeding would have been different." Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18. "A reasonable probability is 

a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome." Strickland, 466 U.S. at 694. 

The court makes this determination based upon the totality of the evidence. Id. at 695. 

Importantly, " [t]he likelihood ofa different result must be substantial, not just conceivable." 

Harrington v. Richter, 562 U.S. 86, i 12 (2011). -

The standards do not establish mechanical rules; the ultimate focus of inquiry<.q1ust bPJ>n 

the fundamental fairness of the proceeding whose result is being challenged. Stricklaia66~.S . :."' ► :.~' ;"1 
:S:: :2 ;i! -0 

at 696. A court need not first detennine whether counsel's performance was dcficicrl@(!fore:C::: 
:--=:: :..1 ~:-j 

n G) ('l ::..­

examining the prejudice suffered by the defendant as a result of the alleged deficie~i5>f!fit=is 
c~ ~ 

easier to dispose of an ineffectiveness claim on the ground of lack of sufficient preju~e, th~ 

course should be followed. Id at 696-97. 

In the context of a guilty pica, the applicant must show there is a reasonable probability 

that but for ineffective assistance of counsel, he or she would not have pied guilty but, instead, 

would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 59 (I 985). Applicant's right 

to contest the validity of a pica is usually, but not invariably, foreclosed because of the inherent 

solemnity and truthfulness included in the guilty pica proccs_s. See Blackledge v. Allison, 431 

U.S. 63, 73-74 ( 1977) ("Solemn dcclaration:s in open court carry a strong presumption of verity. 

The subsequent presentation of conclusory allegations unsupported by specifics is subject to 

summary dismissal, as-arc contentions that in the face of the record arc wholly incredible."). 

Absent valid reasons why the applicant is entitled to depart from previous judicial admissions 
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made at .the plea hearing, statements made during the original proceeding remain conclusive. 

Dalton v. State, 376 S.C. 130, 137-38, 654 S.E.2d 870, 874 (Ct. App. 2007) (citing Crawford·v. 

United States, 519 F.2d 347,350 (4th Cir. 1975)). 

Validity. of Plea 

For a plea to be valid, the applicant must have been aware of the nature and crucial 

clements of the offense the maximum and minimum penalties, and the rights he is waiving by 

accepting the pica. Boykin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238 (1969); Roddy v. State, 339 S.C. 29 (2000). 

A pica is notkn.ciwing or vohintary ifa defendant "lacks knowledge of material evidcncc-·in the 

prosecution's possession." Gibson v. State, 334 S.C. 515,523,514 S.E.2d 320, 324 (1999). 
0, ~ 

A defendant's knowing and voluntary waiver of statutory or constitutional rifili~ mi be •. -.,. 
- > ;i!fTI r, i ! 

established by a complete record, and "may be accomplished by colloquy bctweerfi!ffl ~ur~d 
<:CC .:-
;<: ::o..,, rn 

defendant, between lhe court and defendant's counsel, or both." Roddy v. State,. 33!}>~at ~ 
~8s co :~ 

528 S.E.2d at421 (citing State v. Ray, 310 S.C. 431,437,427 S.E.2d 171,.174 (1993»,'.uf[T}llc 
~ I~ 

voluntariness of a guilty pica is not determined by an examination of the specific inquiry made 

by the sentencing judge alone, but is determined from both the record made at the time of the 

entry of the guilty plea and the record of the post-conviction hearing."' Dalton, 316 S.C. at 138, 

654 S.E.2d at 874 (quoting Harres v. Leckc, 282 S.C. 13 I, 133,318 S.E.2d 360,.361 (1984)). 

Further, "guilty pleas, freely and voluntarily entered, act as a waiver of all non-jurisdictional 

defects and defenses, including claims of a violation of a constitutional right prior to the pica." 

Whetsell v. State, 276 S.C. 295,297,277 S.E.2d 891,892 (1981). 

This Court finds Applicant's plea was entered freely, voluntarily, intelligently, and 

knowingly. Applicant stated he understood the charges and indictments and that he was informed 

of the charges and possible sentencing ranges involved in each charge. (Tr. 4). He stated he told 
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Counsel all relevant facts associated with the charges and that he and Counsel talked ahout the 

fact that he did not have a plausible defense. (Tr. 4). Applicant waived the presentment of the 

charges before the grand jury. (Tr. 5). He also stated he knew he was waiving his rights, 

including the right to remain silent, to call and confront witnesses, and to proceed to a jury trial. 

(Tr. 5-7). He stated no one threatened, promised, or coerced him into pleading, that it was being 

freely and voluntarily entered, that he wanted to plead guilty because he was guilty of all charges 

pied to and that he understood the sentencing ranges and fines. (Tr. 7°9). Applicant stated he 

understood the serious offense distinction associated with his main· chargc-:-(tr: 7~9). After this, 

Applicant stated he still wants to plead guiity. (Tr. 9). Applicant stated he has not used drugs the 

fifty days he has been in jail leading up to the plea hearing, that his addiction nor his paranoid 

schizophrenia did not impact his ability to understand the plea, that his mental healtqAs not ilS> 
"'!.I = 

severe as it used to be, and the last time he took medication under a doctor's care in, tiWj. (; 
?;. ;E: ::v -u 
:,,L-.;,,; 

11-13). Thus, the plea transcript indicates that Applicant kn1lwingly, intelligently, rtda:pana;: 

voluntarily entered his pica. 

Coerced into Pleading 

:-::n ., 
oG'l0 2: 
00° ..... xoc: 

C ;., C!J z-1 
- t 
-< N 

Applicant claims Counsel threatened him into pleading by infonning him that he would 

likely serve more time ifhe went to trial: However, at the plea hearing, Applicant stated that he 

was not threatened, promised, or coerced into pleading. (Tr. 7-9). Additionally, when asked, in 

retrospect, if he would have rather proceeded to trial, A.pplicant stated he did not want to go to 

trial but wanted a sentence reduction. Further, at the PCR hearing, Counsel stated that he 

informed Applicant he would likely serve-more time if convicted at trial as opposed to pleading 

but denied he threatened Applicant into pleading. Accordingly, this Court finds that Applicant 

freely and voluntarily plead and was not coerced into pleading by Counscf informing him he 
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would likely face a harsher sentence ifhe wa~ found guilty at trial because the sentencing range 

permitted was twenty-five to thirty years. A harsher sentence at trial was a consideration in 

deciding to pica, and does not affect the pica's validity, voluntariness, or knowingness of the 

plea. Accordingly, relief is denied on this ground. 

lflformiflg Applicant, He Would Serve Less Time 

Applicant claims his plea was invalid and Counsel ineffective. Applicant claimed he was 

promised by Counsel that he would serve a lesser sentence than he received. Applicant's 

statements -concerning the sentence lluctuated between: "he thought he wo-u!d ieeeive te~ years' 

credit for time served with the rest being served while on probation'', and "that he thought it 

would be served on home detention instead". However, he recognized that the Judge did infom1 
en ,._, 
-0 = 

him he could face up to thirty years for the possession with intent to distribute cocaine?oijarge;:; 
::.•~~ ri, 

(Tr. 9). He also told the Judge.at the plea hearing that no one promised him anythin~er fur 
~~-n .f="" 

him to plea. (Tr. 7-9). At the PCR hearing, Counsel rejected the idea that he told Ap~oo th@; 
. XoC: 

c:v C:O 
he would serve a shorter sentence ifhc pied and, instead, stated that he informed App1~1 of.the 

..,: N 

sentencing ranges and that he would likely serve less time ifhe pied. Further, Applicant stated he 

did not want a new trial because he would likely serve more time than he received by pleading. 

Thus, this Court finds that Applicant knowingly, intelligently, freely, and voluntarily pied while 

knowing the potential sentence he was being exposed to. Regardless, no prejudice is found 

because Applicant was seemingly unwilling to proceed to trial. Accordingly, relief is denied on 

this ground. 

Faif11re to Seek Reduced Cl,arges 

Applicant claims Counsel was ineffective for failing to get the charges reduced to simple 

possession. However, Applicant stated he understood he pied to possession with intent to 
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distribute charges, as applicable, and that he decided to plea because he thought he would get 

less time than proceeding at trial. Additionally, Counsel testified that he thought that 

circumstantial evidence indicated that Applicant intended to distribute, given that he had two 

scales, a good amount of cash, and ·a Crown Royal bag containing multiple different types of 

drugs. Counsel stated that regardless of whether Applicant intended to keep all the drugs to 

himself or distribute them, he thoug!Jt the State had enough evidence to convict because it is rare 

a user has that much cash on their person and a crown royal bag full of different types of drugs. 

Thus, Applicant decided to plead whife knowingly he-was pleading to.possession _;ith intent to 

distribute; not simple possession. Additionally, because the evidence supported the p%5essio,{!_, 
-o = > ...._, 

with inteut to distribute charge, Counsel was not deficient for failing to seek a lessei: ~e. ;;; 
~~2 ~ 

Regardless, Applicant stated he did not want to go to trial and, accordingly, no pre~e-js ..::­
:< ;;J · q 

found. Thus, relief is denied on this ground. 

Failure to Seek Lesser Se11te11ce 

(') GJ r> :::,-, 

~8f: ::!: 

~ ::{ 9? 
::::; 
--: N 

Applicant claims Counsel failed to properly mitigate the sentence so he would serve less 

time or be released on probation or home detention instead. At the plea hearing and in mitigation, 

Counsel stated Applicant suffered several tragedies in his life that caused him to cope through 

drug use, that the amount of actual drugs involved is .9 grams, and that the scales used were for 

personal use only. (Tr. 15-17). Counsel requested the Court consider the minimum sentence and 

requests the Court consider the possibility of home detention. (Tr. 17). Thus, the allegation that 

Counsel failed to. seek a lesser sentence is refuted by the record. Accordingly, relief is denied on 

this ground. 
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. \ '. 
Conclusion 

Based on all the foregoing, this Court finds and concludes that Applicant has not 

established any constitutional violations or deprivations that would require this Court to grant his 

application. Therefore, this PCR application must be denied and dismissed with prejudice, 

This Court notifies Applicant that he must file and serve a notice of appeal within thirty 

days of receipt by counsel of the judgment entry's written notice to secure appropriate appellate 

review. See Ruic 203, SCACR. Pursuant to Austin v. State, 305 S.C. 453,409 S.E.2d 395 (1991), 

aff7\pplicant has the right to appellate counsel's assistance in· seeking review.of.th~ d~niai" of 

PCR. Rule 71.1 (g), SCRCP provides·that if Applicant wishes to seek appellate review, PCR 
(/) ,..., 

counsel must serve and file a notice of appeal on Applicant's behalf. Your attention :i wee~ lo ~;-;; ~ ··•n 
South Carolina Appellate Court Ruic 243 for appropriate appellate procedures. 

~ ):> ;;J -0 .:=z.-
~ ~;-•~ --"' 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED: 

I. The PCR application be denied and dismissed with prejudice; and 
2. Applicant be remanded to the custody of Respondent. 

.,-cc ,&:" i 
;<: ?J..,., tn 
c,00 :: oog -CJ >< 0 :;o <;:? 

Cc.; z .r;:-
~). N 

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this q \\. day of -5t,f~ ~ , 2021. 

~ South Carolina. 

~1~~.~ 
Presiding Judge 
Seventh Judicial Circ\1it 
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2018A4210202546 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

DOCKETN018-GS-42- 451-5 
The State of South Carolina 

County of Spartanburg 

Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

~Uu 2 7 2018 

THE STATE 
vs. 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

TERM 

Indictment for 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO 
DISTRIBUTE COCAINE 

WITHIN ONE-HALF MILE 

SC Code: 44-53-445 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) 
) 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on 

Grand Jurors of County present upon their oath: 

INDICTMENT 

AUG 2 4 2018 _________ __., 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE 
COCAINE WITHIN ONE-HALF MILE 

the 

That Sam Lee Copeland Bunch did in Spartanburg County on June 30, 2018, 

distribute, sell, purchase, manufacture, or unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, a 

quantity of Cocaine, a schedule II controlled substance, while in, on, or within a one­

half mile radius of the grounds of a public or private elementary, middle or secondary 

school; a public playground or park; a public vocational or trade school or a technical 

educational center; or a public or private college or university, to wit: ABC Learning 

Center, under provisions of §44-53-445 of THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH 

CAROLINA (1976), as amended, such possession not having been authorized by law. 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 

~~ sisTANT SOUCITOR 
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2018A4210202544 

ACTION OF GRANO JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

DOCKET t~-GS-42- 4 5 4 ~ 
The State of South Carolina 

County of Spartanburg 

Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

~uu z 1 2n1s 

THE STATE 
vs. 

TERM 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

Indictment for 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO 
DISTRIBUTE MARIJUANA 

SC Code: 44-53•370 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 

INDICTMENT 

At a Court of General Sessions
1 

convened on _______ A_U_G_2_4_2_0_18 ___ , the 

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath: 

POSSESSlON WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE 

That Sam Lee Copeland Bunch did in Spartanburg County on or about June 30, 

2018, manufacture, distribute, dispense, deliver, purchase, aid, abet, attempt or 

conspire to manufacture, distribute, dispense, deliver or purchase, or possess with 

intent to manufacture! distribute. dispense, deliver, or purchase a quantity of Marijuana, 

a schedule l control1ed substance. in violation of§ 44-53-3701 THE CODE OF LAWS 

OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided. 

& A~ 
.ANT SOLICITOR 
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2018A4210202543 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

DOCKET N°18-GS-42- 4 15 41 
The State of South Carolina 

County of Spartanburg 

Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor 

COURTOFGENERALSES~ONS 

~Uu 2 7 2018 

TERM 

THE STATE 
vs. 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

Indictment for 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO 
DISTRIBUTE COCAINE 

SC Code: 44-53-370 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on 

Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath: 

INDICTMENT 

AUG 2 4 2018 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE 

. the Grand 

That Sam Lee Copeland Bunch did in Spartanburg County on or about June 30, 

2018, manufacture, distribute, dispense. deliver, purchase, aid, abet. attempt or 

conspire to manufacture, distribute 1 dispense. deliver or purchase, or possess with 

intent to manufacture, distribute, dispense, deliver! or purchase a quantity of Cocaine, a 

schedule H controlled substance, in violation of§ 44-53-370, THE CODE OF LAWS OF 

SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended, such distribution not having been authorized 

by law. 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made and provided. 

~~IJwv ASSISw;; Uc1TO 
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2018A4210202548 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

DOCKET NC, 8-GS--42- 4 ~ 4 i 
The State of South Carolina 

County of Spartanburg 

Barry Barnette, Solicitor 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

AUG 2 7 2018 TERM 

THE STATE 
vs. 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

Indictment for 

RESISTING ARREST 

SC Code: 16-9-320 {A) 

CDR Code: 32& 

Class MIS-C 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) 
) 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) 

INDlCTMENT 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on ______ AU_G_2_4_2G_1B __ 

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath: 

RESISTING ARREST 

the 

That Sam Lee Copeland Bunch! did in Spartanburg County, on or about June 30 1 

2018, knowingly, willfully and unlawfully oppose and/or attempt to resist the effort of 

Laurent Smith, a law enforcement officer of this State, to make a lawful arrest of the said 

defendant, in violation of §16-09-320 (A), THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

(1976), as amended. 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 
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2018A4210202542 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Dare: 

DOCKET Nia:Gs-42- 4 9--/-9 
The State of South Carolina 

County of Spartanburg 

Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor 

COURTOFGENERALSESS~NS 

AUG Z 7 2018 

THE STATE 
vs. 

TERM 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

Indictment for 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE 
COCAINE BASE 

SC Code: 44-53-375 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 
) 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG) 

INDICTMENT 

... 

AUG 2 4 2018 
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on ------------

Grand Jurors of Spartanburg County present upon their oath: 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE 

the 

That Sam Lee Copeland Bunch did in Spartanburg County on or about 

June 30, 2018, manufacture, distribute, dispense, deliver, purchase, or 

otherwise aid, abett attempt or conspire to manufacture, distribute, 

dispense, deliver or purchase, or possess with intent to manufacture, 

distribute, dispense, deliver, or purchase a quantity of Cocaine Base, a 

schedule II controlled substance under provisions of § 44-53-375, THE 

CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA, (1976), as amended. 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case 

made and provided. 
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2018A4210202547 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

DOCKET NO. - / / _5 so 
18-GS-42· 4 · 

The State of South Carolina 

County of Spartanburg 

Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

~Uu 2 7 2018 

THE STATE 
VS. 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

TERM 

Indictment for 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO 
DISTRlBUTE MARIJUANA 
WITHIN ONE-HALF MILE 

SC Code: 44-53-445 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) 
) 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) 

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on 

Grand Jurors of County present upon their oath: 

INDfCTMENT 

AUG 2 4 2018 _________ __. 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE 
MARIJUANA' WITHIN ONE-HALF MILE 

the 

That Sam Lee Copeland Bunch did in Spartanburg County on June 30, 2018, 

distribute, seJI, purchase, manufacture, or unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, a 

quantity of Marijuana, a schedule I controlled substance, while in, on, or within a one• 

half mile radius of the grounds of a public or private elementary, middle or secondary 

school; a public playground or park; a public vocational or trade school or a technical 

educational center; or a public or private college or university, to wit: ABC Learning 

Center, under provisions of §44-53-445 of THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH 

CAROLINA, (1976), as amended, such possession not having been authorized by law. 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 
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ARREST WARRANT NUMBER 

2018A4210202545 

ACTION OF GRAND JURY 

Foreperson of Grand Jury 
Date: 

VERDICT 

Foreperson of Petit Jury 
Date: 

DOCKET NO. - 4 55 I 
18--GS-42- -

The State of South Carolina 

County of Spartanburg 

Barry J. Barnette, Solicitor 

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

AUG 2 7 2018 

THE STATE 
vs. 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

TERM 

Indictment for 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO 
DISTRIBUTE COCAINE BASE 

WITHIN ONE-HALF MILE 

SC Code: 44.53-445 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) 
) 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ) 

INDICTMENT 

~UG 2 4 2018 
At a Court of General Sessions, convened on _________ _ 

Grand Jurors of County present upon their oath: 

POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE 
COCAINE BASE WITHIN ONE .. HALF MILE 

the 

That Sam Lee Copeland Bunch did in Spartanburg County on June 30, 2018. 

distrlbute, sell, purchase, manufacture, or unlawfully possess with intent to distribute, a 

quantity of Cocaine Base, a schedule II controlled substance, while inl on, or within a 

one-half mile radius of the grounds of a public or private elementary, middle or 

secondary school; a public playground or park; a public vocational or trade school or a 

technical educational center; or a public or private college or university, to wit: ABC 

Learning Center, under provisions of §44-53-445 of THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH 

CAROLINA, (1976), as amended, such possession not having been authorized by law. 

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such 

case made and provided. 

AS TANT SOLICITOR 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLl~A ) 1:-l THE COl'RT OF GENERAL SEScc,m,uter 
SPARTANBURG ) COUNTY OF 

STATE -----------------) vs. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: ICO-<a':)-41,-1..\S~ S'"' 
Sam Lee Copeland Bunch -------------------------- ) 

AKA: ) 
A/W#: 20J8A4210202546 

Date of Offense: 6/30/2018 

S.C. Code§ 44-53-0445(A) 

CDR Code#: 0107 

SF.1".TENCE SHEET 

or ~PLEADS 

in violation of § 

~ NON-VIOLENT 
_44_-_5J_._04_4_5(_A __ } _______ of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code# _0_10'--7 ________ _ 

0 VlOLENT {ID SERIOUS O MOST SERJOUS O Mandatory GPS(CSC 0 §17-25-45 
vdmmor 1st or Lewd Act) 

The charge is: O As Indicted, 0 Lesser lncluded Offense. ~ Defendarit Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. ,.,d /5 (defendant's initials} 

The plea is:f!!iJO Without Negotiations or Recommendation, D Negotiated Sentence ~ Re o by the State. 

ATTEST: ~- , cn..:;q1. ,A..,.. 11+,, ""'1-~~,IJQ~~~ ~r 
~M vt:. ~ttJa~ SC Bar# Defendant epley, Rachel SC Bar# 

' · 1 __._J Attorney for Defendant 

WHEREFORE, the Dctenda~ommited to the [fl! State Department of Correttions. 0 County Detention Center, 
for a detem1inate term of rJayrtrnoPThs/yc:an; tlf D under the Youthful Offender Act not to e)(ceed -- years 
and/or to pay a fine ofS ____ ~efMre.ided that upon the seft.·ice of --,,. days/months/year., and/or payment 
of$ ....--7 • plus costs and assessments as applicable•; tite ha~ancc t.; .,aspcudtd "itl1 pt ob1ilu11 ftn _______ _ 
~Bi'' cm and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Ser\'iccs standard conditions of probation, 
whi9t are incorporated by reference. 
ill<jNCURRENT or O CONSECUTJVE to sentence on: 

[RThe Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 lo be calculated and applied b,· SCDOC. 

0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code ~ l 7-25• 1 )5. 
Pursuant to 18 ll.S.C Section 921.it is 11nlawful for a person convicted of ll violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domnfk 
Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or rtcei\le a firearm or ammunition. 

SPECIAL CONDITIO:'<IIS: 

0 RESTITUTION: 0Deftrnd O Def. Waives Hearing O Ordered PTUP 

Total: S plus 2.0% fee: ------
Payment Tcnns: 

0 Set by SCOPPPS 

Recipient: 

•fine: 
§t4-l-206{Assessmeots 107.5 %) 

~ l4-1-211(A)( l)(Conv. Surcharge) 

§ 14- l-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) 

§56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 
§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 

Proviso (Public .Def/Probation) 

§ \4-1-212 (law Enforce. Funding} 
§ 14-l-213 (Drug Cowt Surcharge) 

§50-21-\ l4{BUI Breath Test Fee) 

§56-S-2942(J} (Vehicle Assessment) 
3% to County (if paid in instal!mcnts) 

TOTAL 

___ $ 

s 
s 

$100 s 100,00 
$100 s 
$12 s 
S2S s 
ssoo s 
$25 s ;t.$00 
S150 s l®.c:() 
S50 s 
S40/ea s 

5 3,dS: 

s ~42'3.a,s: 

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk ___ c_, _1. .... fholl ___________ _ 
Court Reporter: L I O)c:,rC. 'r\, 

SCC.~/217 (04/20! 8) 

-~-- days/hours Public Service Employment 

Obtain GED D 
Attend Voe. Rehab. or Joh Corp. 
May serve W/E begining 

Substance Abuse Counseling D 
Random Drug/ Alcohol testing 0 
Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/month]y 
pmts. of S --~-- beginning 

$ _____ paid to Public Defender fund 

Other: 

O Appointed PD or appointed other counsel, 
Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk 
during probation and shall be collected befort 
any other fees. 

Presiding Judge ...... ~ .. ...--- ...,µ...'--..::::.s.:-.;...!.llotoil!\,....l!~ ...... --===­
Judge Code: 
Sentence Dale: 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF 
STATE 

SPARTANBURG 
vs. 

} 

) 

) 

) 
Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

AKA: ----,~-~------------- ) 
Race: J!!:; Sex: M Age: 39 ; 

DOB: ---SS -------) 
Address~ar ) 
Ci1Y,Statc,Zip: ~ fUIM"W\~ SL UUQ I;:, J 
OL#: _i--__ SlD#: __________ ) 

•cDl. Yes D No O CMV Yes 0No O Hazmat Yes D No D 
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was 
TO: PWID Mariiuana - lst offense(0·S YTS· and/or S0.$5k) 

. Computer 
IN THE COt:RT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

INDJ(TMFNT/CASE#: I 'al1641..4~'-4G., 
NW#; 20l8A4210202S44 

Oate of Offense: _6~/..::.3.:-0/..;;;2~0.;;.;l 8~----------
S.C. Code§ 44-53-0370(b){ l) 

CDR Code#: 0183 

SENTESCE SHEET 

0 CONVICTED OF or 00PLEADS 
rec: concurrent 

in violation of § 

IX! NON-VIOLENT 

..:.44_-5 __ 3 __ -0 __ 3 __ 7_.,0(=b...,.}(.c..i))'--____ .... ofthe S.C. Code of Laws, bearingCDR Code# _0_18_3 ________ _ 
0 VIOLENT O SERIOUS O MOST SERIOUS O Mandatory GPS(CSC O §17-25•45 

The charge is: 
The plea is: 

O As Indicted, O Lesser Included Offense, 

Without Negotiations or Recommendation. 
[!] Detendant Waives Presentment to 

0 Negotiated Sente _..,...,..a., 
ATTEST: 

SC Bar# Kepley, Rachel 
_ / A ttomcy for Defendant 

WHEREFORE, the Defendant5mmited to the ~ State Department of Corrections, D County Detention Center, 
for a detcnninate term of e,:,mae"tk/years 8P D under the Youthful Offender A~I not to exceed __ ~years 
and/or to pay a fine of S - : pmxided fbas npoa rbe seodu of - days/months/years and/or payment 
of S - ; plus costs and assessments as applicable';~ h1d11nec is suspended t4ld1 probation for .-
maAlh!li!s ears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Ser'\'iccs standard conditions of probation, 
whi9t arc incorporated by reference. 
liJ"c~CURR£NT or O CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: 

[]rthe Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCDOC. 

0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § l 7•25· J 35. 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Stttion 922tit is unlawful for a person convided ofa \'iolation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-lS-6~ (Domestic 

\'iolenct) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition. 
SPECIAL CONDITlONS: 

□ RESTITITTIOI\': □Deferred D Dd. Wai\les Hearing Oordmd 

Total: S plus 20% fee: ------
Payment Tenns: 

0 Set by SCDPPPS 

Recipient: 

'Fine: 
§ 14-1-206 (AssessmenlS 107.S %} 

§J4-\-2ll(AXl)(Conv. Surcharge) 
§14-l-2ll(A)(2)(DUI Surcharge) 

§56-5-2995 (DUl Auessment} 
§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 

Proviso (Public De£'Probation) 
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 

§50-2 l-\14(BUI Breath Test Fee) 

§56-5-2942(J) {Vehicle Assessment) 

3% to County (if paid in installments) 

TOTAL 

___ $ 

s 
s 

SlOO s 100.ro 
$100 s 
$12 s 
$25 s 
$500 s 
$25 s ~'5:•(X) 
$150 s /3).~ 
S50 s 
$40/ea s 

s ~ ·:a.s 
s ~13 a, 

Clerk of Court/ Deputy per\. .,...--C-=--.... • .... £hae __ ..._J..=--------

Cou11 Reporter· L ,Mof£iH 
SCCA/217 (04/2018) 

____ days/hours Public Service Employment 

Obtain GED 0 
Attend Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 

May serve W/E begining 

Substance Abuse Counseling D 
Random Drug/ Alcohol testing D 
Fine may be pd, in equal, consecutive weekly/month!)· 
pmts. of S ______ beginning 

S _____ paid to Public Defender fund 

Other: 

D Appointed PD or appointed other counsel, 
Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk 
during probation and shall be collected before 
any other fees. 

Presiding Judge 
Judge Cod~: 
Sentence Date: 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

COUNTY OF 
STATE 

SPARTANBURG ~ 
s. ) 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 
AKA: ______ _________ ) 

Race: ~Sex: ~ ge: 39 ~ 
DOB: --~ ___ SS# ....... ==;:===~----) 

Addreiiiiiil~ ) C1ty,S · __ ~- f>l'....:: l::'f},o, ) 
DL#: ==--- ---SID ~ ) 
•COL Yes□ No□ CMV Yes□ NoQ Hazmat Yes□ No□ 
In disposition of the said indiconent comes now the Defendant who was 
TO: Dru~s I PWID Cocaine 2nd Offense (5-30 yrs and/or S0-$50k) 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS 

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 20,sos"g,nputer 
A/ W#: 2018A4210202543 
Date of Offense: _6.:..;./.;;..30:c./2:;.;0""l.c..8 _ _______ _ 
S.C. Code§ 44-53-0375(8)(1) 

CDR Code#: 3014 - --- ----------
SENTENCE SHEET 

0 CONVICTED OF or ~ PLEADS 

(~C:-<:<>n~ 
in violation of § 44-53-0370(b)( I) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0184 _,.;;..-'-C...,;----=----
~ NON-VIOLENT O VIOLENT ~ SERIOUS O MOST SERIOUS O Mandatory GPS(CSC O §17-25-45 

w/minor I st or Lewd Act) 
O As Indicted, Qlesscr Included Offense. ~Defendanl Waives Presentment I Grand Jury. /4. l";J (defendant's initials) The charge is: 

□With ut Negotiations or Recommendation, O Negotiated Senten {.'9 Recomm atio by the State. 
~~-

The plea is: 

SCI02392 ~ /t,,,1~ §&ti~ 
SC Bar# Defendant Kepley, Rachel SC Bar# 

ATTEST: 

/ Attorney for Defendant 
WHEREFORE, the Oefendan_H ~ted to the ~ State Department ofCorredions, 0 County Detention Center, 
for a detenninate ienn of '~ cfe)sh11onft15/years flt O under the Yoltl¼(_II Offender Act not to exceed - years 
and/or to pay a fine of$ - ; provided that upon the service of ---+- ..... U--.-- daysfn10ori1s/years al'ld,<or l'~:m•At 
~ - : plus costs and assessments as applicable•; the balance is suspended with probation for --~r--- --

are incorporated by reference. IA11 · • 
1years and subject to South Carolina DepamProbation, olc an'tl Pardon Servic sta ard conditi s of probation, 

CURRENT or O CONSECUTI o e ce . fl• I 
Defendant is to be given credit for t ime served pursuant to S.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by SCDOC. 

Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135. 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it Is unlawful for a ptrson convicted of a violation or Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
0 RESTITUTION: □Deferred Q Def. Waives He■rln& Q Ordered PTUP 

Total: $ plus 20% fee: ----- ___ $ 

Payment Terms: 
0 Set by SCDPPPS 

Recipient: ------------------
•Fine: 
§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 

§14•1·21 l(A)( I) (Conv. Surcharge) 
§ 14-t-21 l(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) 
§56•5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 
§56-1-286 (UUI Breath Test} 
Proviso (Public Def/Probation) 
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 
§ l 4• l-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) 
§S0-21 - l 14(BUI Breath Test Fee) 

§56-5-2942(1) (Vehicle Assessment) 
3% 10 County (if paid in installments) 

TOTAL 

$ 

s 
SIOO $ 100100 
SIOO $ 
Sl2 $ 

$25 $ 

!~~ ~lf&f 
$1 so $ JS,.00 
$50 $ 
$4-0/ca $ ~------s,a3 .as: 

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk _..Q ...... J.....,.~>t/4."""'"" _____ _ __ _ 

Court Reporter: (_ , ~ ¥-

SCCN21 7 (04/2018} 

_ ___ days/hours Public Service Employment 

Obtain GED 0 
Attend Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 
May serve W/E begining _ __ /~-- - - - -

Substance Abuse Counseling iii' 
Random Dru~Alcohol testing lfY 
Fine may be pd. in equal, cons.ecutfve weekly/monthly 
pmts. of S _____ beginning 

$ 

• 

✓tppo;nted PO °' appo;ntcd othe, ,,mnsel, 
Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk 
during probation and shall be collected before 
any other fees. 

Presiding Judge 
Judge Code: 
Sentence Date: 
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ST ATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF 
STATE 

AKA: 

Ra,e: 
DOB: 

_____ S;;.;P __ A--R--TA;..:.NB:...:.=..U:;...R....;G ________ ~ 
vs. ) 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch ) 

) 

) 

------ ) 
) 

) 
) 

'CDI. Yes O No O CMV Yes QNo O Hazmat Yes O No 0 
In disposition of1he Sllid indictment comes now the Ddendant who was 
TO: Rcsistinl( Arrest (0- 1 yr and/or SSOO-S IOOO) rec: concum:nt 

IN THE COLIRT OF GENERAL SESSIO~S 

INDICTMENT/CASE#: 7..ol%C.::6'-l't. l.4'5'-t~ 
A/'N#: 20!8A4210202548 
()ate of Offense: 

s.C. Code§ 

CDRCode#: 

6/30/2018 
16-09-0320(A) 

0326 

SF.NTEJ'liCE SHEET 

D CONVICTED or- or ~Pl.EADS 

in violation of § 

~ NON-VIOLENT 

.,_16-=-=.09~-0.=..:32=-=0-"(A..:.).__ _____ -'ofthc S.C. Code: of Laws. bearing CDR Code# ....::0,::.32:.:6.__ _______ _ 
0 VIOLENT O SERIOUS O MOST SERIOUS O Mandatory GPS<CSC O §17-25-45 

w/minor ls1 or L~Ac!) 
The charge 1s: O As Indicted, O Lesser Included Offense:. I!) Oefendan1 Waives J>resentmcni to G d Jury. /4 ~ (defendant's mnials) 

The pica is~· (]Without Ne~otiations or Recommendation, 0 Negotiated Sentence I!) ti the State. 

ATTEST~~~ \O:Z,~'17.... )\,.. 4 ~-,,1,r ----=~--=..e=......,__~~~~~~ scl.1:Jr,,:j-
USTIMCH K, TA TY ANA S. SC Baril Defendant SC Bar# 

WHEREFORE, lhe Defendant it commited to the ristate Departmtnt o(Cor~ctlons, D Couacy Detention Center, 
for a detcnninatc tenn of __ l __ cl&j!l't .. onlftS/yearnir D under the Yo11tbltul Offender Act not to exceed ___ years 
and/or 10 ~ fine ofS - ; pip11id1d tliet 11f!&11 lll1 &cNicc: of - days/months/yearo and/or payment 
of$ ____ ; plus costs and assessmcnis as applicable•; tho halmta is suspc.1Hltd ,vld, p, obalMII for _______ _ 
QlQ<lllu1, dis and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole IIJld Pardon Services standard conditions of probation, 

whi9"arc incorporated by reference. 
[JfcqNCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to senlence on: 

e Defendant is to be given credil ror time served pursuant 10 S.C. Code §24-13-40 10 be calculaicd and applied by SCDO<.'. 

e Defendant is 10 be placed on the Central Registry ofChih.l Abuse and Neglect pursuant 10 S.C. Code§ 17-25- IJS. 
Pursuant to 18 l 1.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted ofa violation ofStcllon 16-2!1-20 or 16-25-65 (Domestic 
Violence) to slllp, transport, possess, or receivt a firearm or ammunition. 

SPt:CIAI. COJ'liDITIONS: 

0 RESTtTI1TJO!'": Oo,remd O ~r. WalYa Htarin& QOrdtrtd 

To1al: S ______ plus 20% fee: 

Pa)'ment Terms: 
0 Set by SCDPPPS 

Recipient: 

•fine: 
§ 14-1-206 (Asscssmcn1S 107.5 %) 

§ I 4-1-2 1 l(A)( I) (Conv'. Surcharge) 
§ 14-l-21 l(A)(2)(DUI Surcharge) 

~56-.S-2995 (DlJI Asscssmmt) 
§56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 
Prov iso (Publ ic Dcfi'Probation) 
§ 14-1-212 (law Enforce. Funding) 
§ I 4-1-2 13 (Drug Coun Surcharge) 
§S0-21- 114(8UJ Breath Tes1 Fee) 
§S6-S-2942(J) (Vehicle A~ment) 

3% 10 Count)' (if paid in installments) 

TOTAL 

___ s 

SIOO 
SIOO 
$12 

m 
ssoo 
S25 
SIS0 
S50 
S40/ea 

s 

s 
s 
s 
$ 

s 
s 
t I, as 3.Jrr 

sdrJ.~ 
Clerk ofCollltl Depuly Clerk _.C_..◄..,~Rx....,.._i.,..,__ _______ _ 
Court Reporter: l, O'.Jbl),_~:½:\: 
SCCA/217 (04/2018) 

PTllP 

____ days/hours Public Servi~ Employmen1 

Obtain GED O 
Attend Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 

May serve W/E bcgining 

Substance Abuse Counseling 0 
Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0 
Fine may be: pd. in equal. consecutive weekly/monthly 
pmL~. of S _____ beginning 

S _____ paid to Public Defender Fund 

Other: 

D Appointed ?I) or appoi11ted other counsel, 
Proviso requires S500 be paid to Clerk 
during probation and shall be collected before 
any other fees. 

Presiding Judge 
Judge Code: 
Sentence Date: 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) 

COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG ~ 
STATE VS. ) 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch 

AKA: ----~------------ ) 
Race: ~ Sex: M Age: 39 ~ 
DOB: -=ss -----) 
Address: '1:t.'5 \.,\ \JU'\ * ) 
City,Stat~y\b~ ::>(,. Ml~oc. J DL#: ________ SID#: ______ O' ______ ) 

IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SEeot ,,pute 
INDICTMENT/CASE#: -~---------20 l 8OS4204549 

A/W#: 2018A4210202542 
Date of Offense: _6_/_30_1_20_1_8 _________ _ 
S.C. Code§ 44-53-0375(8)(1) 

CDR Code#: __ 3_0_14 __________ _ 

SENTENCE SHEET 

*COL Yes □ No□ CMV Yes □ No□ Hazrnat Yes□ No□ 
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was D CONVICTED OF or [ZIPLEADS 
TO: Dru_gs / PWID. cocaine base. 2nd offense (5-30 yrs. and/or $0~S50k) rec: concurrent sent. 

in violation of § 44-53-0375(8)(2) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code# _30_1 __ 5 _______ _ 
~ NON-VIOLENT O VIOLENT lZJ SERIOUS O MOST SERJOUS O Mandatory GPS(CSC 0 §17-25-45 

\\1/minor J st or Lewd Act) 
The charge is: O As Indicted, D Lesser Included Offense, ~ Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. ,S ~ {defendant1s initials) 
The pl~a is: □Without Negotiations or Recommendation, O Negotiated Senten ~ c men ti y the ~tate. 

ATTE . SC102392 ~ ~ (.41 £_~~~~~~~~- st'B1~7~ 
USTIMC K, TATYANA S. SC Bar# Defendant Kepley. Rachel SC Bar# 

_._/ Attorney for Defendant 

WHEREFORE, the Defendallf iy,pmmited to the l'1 State Department of Corrections, D County Detention Center, 
for a detenninate term of -l-lL- .aa) s,'fflsRths/years M D under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed - years 
and/or to pay a fine of$ ..., ;J;Jmvided that upeH the HF"t'ice of - days/months/years and/or payment 
of$ --- ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; tlM_balanct ii ii'l&ptnded wiib probaaien for _______ _ 
n:wflthsi'ye"'rs and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation. Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of probation, 
~~ are incorporated by reference. 
ly"~NCURRENT or □ CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: 

(itrhe Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code §24• 13-40 to be calcu]ated and applied by SCDOC. 

D The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135. 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25•65 (Domestic 
Violence) to ship, transport, possess, or receive a firearm or ammunition. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 
0 RESTITlJTION: □Deferred O Def. Waives Hearing □Ordered PTUP 

Total: $ plus 20% fee: -----
Payment Terms: 
0 Set by SCDPPPS 

Recipient: 

•fine: 
§ l 4-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) 

§ 14• l -21 l (A)( 1) (Conv. Surcharge) 
§ 14-J-2l l(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) 
§56•5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 
§56• l-286 (DUI Breath Test) 
Proviso (Public Def/Probation) 
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) 
§14-1-213 {Drug Court Surcharge) 
§50-2 \. J 14(BUI Breath Test Fee) 
§56•5-2942(1) (Vehicle Assessment) 
3% to County (if paid in installments) 

TOTAL 

$ ---

$ 
$ 

SlOO Sk)t).QQ 
$100 $ $]2 -$.,...._ ____ _ 

$25 $ ssoo _,...$ _____ _ 

sis s ae;-,00 
$150 $ j ©+© 
$50 $ 
$40/ea __,_$ _____ _ 

$ 3.~ 

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk _.C-......\ ... 0_:x;_e ..... _______ _ 
Court Reponer: ( ,O\c$i_;4 

SCCN2 l 7 (04/20 J 8) 

____ days/hours Public Service Employment 

Obtain GED D 
Attend Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 
May serve W IE begining 
Substance Abuse Counseling 0 
Random Drug/Alcohol testing D 
fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly 
pmts. of$ _____ beginning 

$ ____ paid to Public Defender Fund 

Other: 

D Appointed PD or appointed other counsel, 
Proviso requires $500 be paid to Clerk 
during probation and shall be collected before 
any other fees. 

Presiding Judge 
Judge Code: 
Sentence Date: 
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STA TE Of sm:TH CAROLINA IN THF. COllRT OF GENERAL SESsroComputer 
COUNTY OF SPARTANBURG 
STATE vs. INDICTMENT/CASI)/: 

Sam Lee Copeland Bunch A/W#; 201RA4210202547 
AKA: 

Date of Offense: _6_/.:;.30:::.i/2.:;.0=-.:l:..::8 _________ _ 
39 S.C. Code§ _ 4_4-_5_3-_0_44_S_(A---) _______ _ 

CDR Code#: 0107 

SENTf.NCl::SHEET 

0 CONVICTED OF or ~PLEADS 
rec: concurrent 

in violation of § 

~ NON-VIOLENT 
.;..44-.:..=S3c...-04;::..;..a4"-'S(""'A_,_l _____ __;ofthe S.C. Code ofLaws, bearing CIJR Code II _.:,;0.:..,10::.:.7 _______ _ 

0 VIOLENT ~ SERIOUS O MOST SERIOUS O Mandatory GPS(CSC 0 §17-25-45 

The charge is: O As lndicred. O Lesser Included Offense, I!) Dtfcndan1 Wai,•e5 Presen1mcn1 to (defendant's 1ni11als) 

The plea is: QWithout Negotiations or Recommendation. £ ~eg~i:d Sentc ,~·-,-.,n by the SC,it te-i.,-7_ 

...,Jmmor 1st or Lewd Actl 

ATTEST: /in,,M-~ \01.'.!e--Z.. ,-... ,,_.. lc~ 
USTIM~NA S. SC Bar# Defendant SC Bar# 

WHEREFORE, 1l< n.rb"mHol ro 1l< Ism, o..,nmm ,re.,...,,,.,_ D c ... ., °'""'"" c,,..,. 
for a detenninare tenn of ctii)Siiil0ndw'years ep O under the Yourhful Offeader Act not to exceed ___ years 
nnd/or to pay a fine of$ - '""°' ided that upon the sc, 1 ice of ______ days/months/years and/or payment 
of S - ; plus costs and assessments as applicable•; tl>-.alaocc i5 smperuwl...ltl!lt£:~ for _______ _ 
,mQAlh91")t8" and subject to South Carolina Depaitment of Probation. Parole and Pardon Services ~1andard conditions ofprobntion. 
whicj,ere inCOfl)orated by reference. 
(]tJNCURRENT or O CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: 

~ Defendant is to~ given credit for lime ~rved pursuant to S.C. Code §24• 13-40 to be calculated anti applied by SCDOC. 

0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code § 17-25-135. 
fun.uaut 10 18 U.S.C Section 922,lt Is unlawful for• person convicrtd of• ,•lol1tlon or Sertil>n 16-2S-20 or 16-2S-6S (l>omestlc 
Violence ) ro ship, lr1nsport, possess, or rttcln a firearm or 1mmuni1io11. 

SrECIAL CONDfflO~S: 
0 RF.STlnrnoN: []Permed O Dd. Waives Hearin& Oon1crec1 

Total: S ______ plus 20% fee: 

Payment T enns: 

0 Set by SCDPPPS 

Recipient: 

•Fine: 
§ !4-1-206(A=ments 107.5 %) 

§14-1-21 l(AX l)(Conv. Surcharge) 
§ l4-1 -2l l(AX2) (DUI Surcharge) 

§56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) 
§56• 1-286 (DUI Breath Test) 

Proviso (Public Def/Probation) 

§14-1•212 (Law Enforce. funding) 
§ I 4- 1-213 ( Drug Court S urchargc) 

§S0-21·114(BUI Brcalh Test Fee) 

§S6-5-2942(JJ (Vehicle Assessmcnl) 

3¾ 10 County (if paid in installments) 

TOTAL 

___ s 

$100 

$100 
$12 

$25 

ssoo 
$25 
$150 

$50 

s 
s 

s 
$ 

s 
$40/ea S -------

$ J. ;).S: 

Clerk of Court/ l)cplll)' Clerk .....-,£..i..,,1-LL ftL..J..,•~a...:~-------
Court Reponer. ...L-.., ... 01 ........ o ... ~~JJli_._ ___ ==---------
SCCA/217 (0412018) 

PTl'P 

____ days/hours Public Service Employment 

Obtain GED O 
Allend Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 

May serve W/'t. lx:gining 

Subston~-e Abuse Counseling D 
Random Drug/Alcohol testing D 
Fi~ may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly 
pmts. ofS _ ____ beginning 

S _____ paid to Public Defender Fund 

Other: 

O Appointed PD or appointed other counsel. 
Proviso requires SSOO be paid 10 Clerk 
during probation and shall ~ collected before 
any other fees. 

Presiding Judge 
Judge Code: 
Sentence Date: 
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STA TE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COliRT Of GENERAL SESSl<Goml)uter 
_____ ::.:SP:.;.A:.:.:R:..:.TA:_,:,N:..;.B=-U:..:R..:.:G:...._ _ ___ ~ 

vs. ) 
COUNTY OF 
STATE INDICTMENT/CASE#: 

/\/W#; 2018A421020254S _ _________ ..::S::am::.:..:L::ce~C.::.o.c;pe:.::lan=d~B:.:u::.:n~ch.;__ ____ ) 

AKA: -------- ---------- I 
Race: ~ Sex: M Ase: 39 1 

Date of 0 fTcnsc: ~6/~30/2=0~1~8~--- --- - ---

000: -=.ssN: 1 

S.C. Code § _ 4..:.:4:..:•5;,::3...:·0;.;.4..;.;45;,;.;(A;.;.l:....... ______ _ 

Address: --z~s H:¥J,V\ 5t } 
City.State.Zip: 5p,i\<tnb~ t> L 1!1~ > 
UL#: ~ SID#:....1_ {J,t.__ ______ ) 

CDRCodc#: 0107 

SENTENCE SHEET 

•c ol Yes O No O CMV Yes D No O HAZll\at Yes O No 0 
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was O CONVICTED OF or [ID Pl.f.A DS 
TO: Distribute. sell. manuf. or pwid, of cont sub .. near school (0·10 y~ and/or Ml•SI0K) 

in violation of § 
!19 NON-VIOLENT 

.,_44..:..•:..S3~-04.=...:..4:.::5.1.:{A..,.)'--- ------ofthe S.C. Code of Laws. bearing <:OR Code # _::O:.!.I0:,..;7~ - -------
O VIOLl:NT ~ SERIOUS O MOST Sf:RlotJS O Mondatory GPS(CSC O §17-25-45 

wfmil'lOf' 1st or Lewd Act) 
The charge is: O As lndieted, O Lesser included Otfense, (!I Defendant Wm-cs Presentment to Gr ry . .&, ,6 
The plea is: 0 Without Negotiations or Recommcndaiion, 0 Negotiated Sentence, J.-~O 

tJD~ lO'l.3'fZ.. &~1, (A,ttq tm 

(defendan(s imuals) 

thcSt~:;z. 
ATTEST~ ,a:, .. :.,, • A . .,,. 

UST1MCK. TATYANA S. SC Baril Defendant 

WHEREFORE. the DefcndJutlJl. commited to the ✓.t,tr Dtpartme111 or Corrections, 0 Counly Dtle■tiOI Ct■1cr, 
for a determinate term or -1.!l._ ~a~·r<Allanlhs/yein oc O under the Youlbf■l Offeadcr Ai:1 not to excci:d - years 
and/or to pay a fine of S ____ . pr;pyided •bar "IN'" tl!11i11Pti;1,of - days/months/years and/or payment 
ofS - ; plus costs and assessments as applicabk0

; the ll1lanN is suspemlC'd wllh pro6ltion for - -========~-­
~ and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation. Parole and Pardon SeTvices standard conditions ot'probation, 
~i~ incorporated by reference. 
LVC~1'/CURRENT °' 0 CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: 

~ De(endant is tO be gi.,en credit for lime served pursuant 10 S.C. Co~ §24• 13-40 to be cidculati:d anJ 11ppli"'1 by SCDOC. 

OThe Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17•2~•1 35. 
P■nu1nt to II U.S.C Section 92?,it 1, unlawful for• person i:onklcd or I violation of Section J6-l5-l0 or 16-25-65 (D01Wcitic 
Vloltnct ) 10 tblp, 11'ntport, pouru, or rttti.vt • flrtum or 1mm11nlllon. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

0 RtSTITL'TION: []odtrnd 00rr. Waives Hnirlll1 QOrdtrtd PTt:P 

To1al: S plus 20¾ fee: - -----
Payment Tenns: 

0 Set by SCDPPPS 

Recipient: 

' Fine: 
§1 4-1-206 (Asscs.smcnu 107.S %) 

§14-1-ill(A)(ll(Conv Surcharge) 
§l4• l-211(AX2J (DUI Surcharge) 
§S6-5•2995 (DUJ Asscssmcna) 
§S6-l•286(DUl Breath Test) 
Proviso (Public DeUl'robalion) 
§l4• 1-212 (law Enforce, Funding) 
§14• 1-2 IJ (Dn,g Coun Surtharge} 
liS0·21·114{BUI Brtalh Test Fee} 
§56-S-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) 

3% toCoun,y (if paid in installments) 

TOTAL 

___ s 

s 
s 

SIOO S f()O,Q() 
$ 100 S -------$12 _s _ _ __ _ 

!~ ==!=:========= m s rls\oa 
mo s ISt:>. CX> 
sso _..;.s _ ____ _ 
S40fca S 

-s -i-.-2-S:- -

Cleric of Coun/ Deputy Clerk C .iliz,t 
Coun Reporter L. , ~ :-0:---:'~__.._.~ ..._.,.._ ____ ___ _ 

SCCN217 (0412011) 

_ _ _ _ days/hours Public Sm ·icc Employment 

Obtain GED 0 
Aucnd Voe. Rehab. or Job Corp. 
May serve W/E bcgining 

Substant:¢ Abuse Counseling 0 
Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0 
Fine may be p<l. in equal. consecutive weekly/monthly 
pm1s. of S _____ beginning 

s 
Other: 

paid to Public Defender fund 

0 Appointed PD or appointed nthcr counsel. 

Proviso requires SS00 be paid to Clerk 
during probation and shall be collected before 
any other recs. 

Presiding Judge 
Judge Code: 
Sentence Date: 
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